
APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

INSTALLATION OF LIGHTS FOR
RYANMEADOWS SUBDIVISION

MTG.DATE
August 4, 2020

ITEM NO.

G13.
BACKGROUND
Ryan Meadows Subdivison (southwest corner of W. Ryan Road and S. 112" Street) is being
constructed. The Developers Agreement included an allowance for street lights and is included in
the developer's letter of credit.

ANALYSIS
WE Energies needs payment and a signed request for the installation of the four lights to occur.

OPTIONS
A. Authorize Staff to sign the attached request letter. Or,
B. Refer back to Staffwith further direction.

FISCAL NOTE
The upfront charge of $13,213.59 will be deducted from the developer's letter of credit. These
lights will add $43.68 to the monthly electric bill for street lights.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Motion to direct City Engineer to order installation of lights for Ryan Meadows
Subdivision.

Engineering: GEM



We Energies
I N 14at »!

' £ g cm

July 27, 2020

City of Franklin
Ronnte Asuncion
9229 W Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Subject Work Request 4366260, Lighting at Ryan Meadows Subd1v1s1on - Franklin, WI

Dear Ronnie

This letter details a work request for We Energies Outdoor Lighting The upfront charge for thus work,
which expires 90 days from the date of this letter, is $13,213 59, and does not include site restoration.
Net monthly charges wrll 1rntlally increase by $43 68, which 1s subJect to future rate changes as approved
by the Public Service Comm1ss1on ofWtsconsm

Review the following pnor to providing authonzat1on and payment
• Lummaires are controlled to provide dusk to dawn operation.
• Customer must contact We Energies for lighting maintenance
• Ftxtures are warranted until removed
• Non-Standard poles and conductors are warranted for 15 years
• Customer must locate pnvate underground fac1lltles and grant or obtain, without expense to We

Energtes, access to property, necessary permssons, easements, ordinance satisfaction and
penn1ts for installation, removal and maintenance of lighting facilities

• Termmahon or change requests after mstallahon and prior to conclusion of the m1t1al term result in
customer charges Monthly rates for fixtures on the LED rate are reduced after the rnrtlal term

• All applicable lighting tariff terms and cond1t1ons are available atwe-energies com.
• We Energies does not guarantee this installation meets AASHTO or the Illuminating Engmeenng

Society's m1n11num recommended standards for hghtrng.

Please sign the enclosed documents and return them, along with payment for the upfront charge
(payable to We Energies) m the envelope provided Material will be ordered upon receipt of reqwred
authonzatrons and payment Work request will be scheduled when all contingencies are met If you have
any questions. please call me at 414-315-0553 We look forward to working with you on your hghtrng
pr9rec!

~

·q,ce~lf'y\ •\,

LM·#".tin Maurer
Energy Services Representative
robin maurer@we-energ1es com

By signing this letter, you authorize us to do this work and acknowledge acceptance of the rates and
cond1lions of the specified tariffs as approved by the Public Service Commission ofWisconsin

Signature _

Print name _

Enclosures

Date _

Title _
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APPROVAL
(
a» ,

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

AGREEMENT TO ALLOW SEWAGE GRINDERPUMP AT 10609
W. ST. MARTINS ROAD (TKN 800 9999 002)

MTG.DATE
August 4, 2020

ITEM NO.

G/.

BACKGROUND
10609 W. St. Martins Road has a failing septic system and desires to connect to the public sanitary
sewer system.

ANALYSIS
This home is in a sewage basin that has not been fully developed and the nearest manhole in this
sewer shed is located almost 2,000 feet to the northwest (11100 W. St. Martins Road). However,
this home is at the upper reaches of the sewer shed and there is a manhole to the southwest about
150 feet from the home to the manhole in the neighbor's (10551 W. St. Martins Road) front yard.
Unfortunately, 10609 cannot get to 10551 by gravity.

Staff has discussed this situation with the property owner and his plumber. Staff supports that
10551 be allowed to install a grinder sewage pump if he agrees that when a gravity sewer main is
available the owner, at that time, must abandon the grinder sewage pump and connect to the gravity
sewer. This agreement should indicate that the property owner is solely responsible for the
maintenance, operation, and replacement of the pump.

There are a handful of places around Franklin (most recently S. Woelfel Road and W. Stone Hedge
Drive in 2016) that have similar agreements.

OPTIONS
A. Approve agreement to allow a sewage grinder pump. Or,
B. Provide further direction to Staff.

FISCAL NOTE
This will have no impact on the Sewer Utility budget.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Motion to enter into an agreement to allow sewage grinder pump at 10609 W. St.
Martins Road (TKN 800 9999 002). Also,

Direct Staff to register agreement with Milwaukee Register of Deeds.

Engineering Department: GEM
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SANITARY SEWER CONNECTION AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, John J Reuteler and Terry Lea Reuteler ("Reutelers") are the owners of the property
commonly known as 10609 W St Martins Road, Franklin, Wisconsin, more particularly described as:

Lot 2 of Certified Survey Map No. 8777, a part of the Northwest 1/4 of Northwest 1/4, Section 17,
Township 5 North, Range 21 East, City of Franklin, County of Milwaukee, State of
Wisconsin, recorded in the office of the Register of Deeds for Milwaukee County,
Wisconsin on February 29, 2016.

WHEREAS, the Reutelers have requested permission from the City of Franklin to connect to the
extension of sanitary sewer mn the vicmity of 10551 W. St. Martins Road, so as to have the benefit of the
immed1ate availability of municipal sanitary sewer service to their property; and

WHEREAS, it is likely that sanitary sewer service will be extended on W. St. Martins Road from
the opposite direction abutting the frontage of the property 11100 W. St. Martins Road and the special
assessment policy of the City of Franklin would require the property at 10609 W. St Martins Road to be
specially assessed and the owners thereofto pay the special assessment pursuant to Section 207-15.0 of the
Municipal Code of Franklin, Wisconsin, for such sanitary sewer service installation.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants set forth herem, it is hereby
agreed as follows:

1. The City of Franklin hereby grants perm1ss1on to the Reutelers, as owner of the property located
at 10609 W St Martins Road, Franklin, Wisconsin, to connect to the sanitary sewer service installed near 10551
W. St Martms Road.

2. Upon connection of the property at 10609 W. St Martins Road, Franklin Wisconsin, to the
sanitary sewer service installed from the northwest abutting said property, the Reutelers shall pay to the City of
Franklin the sanitary sewer connection fees as required by the Municipal Code of Franklin, Wisconsin, as
amended from time to time.

3 All arrangements for and costs ansmg from the connection of the property at I 0609 W. St
Martms Road, Franklin, Wisconsin, for the installation of sanitary sewer service installed to the sanitary
sewer manhole at 10551 W St. Martins Road shall be the responsibility of the Reutelers.

4 The Reutelers, for their heirs, successors and assigns, notwithstanding any prior sanitary
sewer service availability or connection to the property at 10609 W. St Martins Road, Franklin, Wisconsin,
shall be responsible for and pay to the City of Franklin any assessment levied against the property located at
I 0609 W. St Martins Road, Franklin, Wisconsin, for the installation of sanitary sewer service from the
northwest abutting said property and they hereby acknowledge the subject property to be specially benefited
by such future installation and waive notice and hearing upon such future special assessment, pursuant to
Section 66.0703 (7)(b) of the Wisconsin Statutes and Section 207-15.0 of the Municipal Code.

5 The provisions hereof shall operate as a covenant runnmg with the land above particularly
described and shall bind all parties hereto, their respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and
assigns



In witness whereof the undersigned have hereunto set forth theu hands and seals upon the
dates as acknowledged, effective the day of,2020.

__________ (SEAL) _ (SEAL)
JOHN J REUTELER

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss

MILWAUKEE COUNTY )

TERRY LEA REUTELER

Personally came before me ths day of 2020, the above named
JOHN J REUTELER and TERRY LEA REUTELER, to me known to be the person who executed the
foregoing instrument and acknowledged same.

Notary Public, State ofWisconsin

My commission expires: _

City of Franklin

By_(SEAL)
Stephen R Olson, Mayor

Countersigned:

By_(SEAL)
Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
) ss

MILWAUKEE COUNTY)

Personally came before me thisday of 2020 Stephen R. Olson, Mayor,
and Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk, ofthe above named municipal corporation, City of Franklin, to
me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing instrument and to me known to be such Mayor
and City Clerk of said municipal corporation by its authority and pursuant to approval granted by its
Common Council on the_day of, 2020.

Notary Public, State ofWisconsin

My commission exp1res.
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REPORTS AND
RECOMMENDATIONS

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION

DIRECTION CONCERNINGW. PUETZ ROADAND 2020
ROADPROGRAM

MEETING DATE
August 4, 2020

ITEM NUMBER
• I5.

BACKGROUND
The 2020 Road Program includes an estimated $145,000 work on W. Puetz Road from S. 27Street to W. Yorkshire Circle.
The attached memorandum for the proposed 2021 budget discusses a proposal for funding the improvements to W Puetz
Road that were demed for funding through the Surface Transportation Urban Program (STP).

Staff would like immediate dll"ection from Common Council regarding W. Puetz Road. Contractors are ready to mobilize
and some work has started

ANALYSIS
The 2020 work on W. Puetz Road 1s anticipated to be a full-depth pulverization project that should keep the pavement in
good repair for about 30 years All budget items for this segment includmg asphalt, pulverization, undercutting, and other
miscellaneous costs are approximately $145,000. Almost all agree that the road should be widened but that is not part of
the 2020 Road Program.

If the Common Council is agreeable that a future self-funded project on W. Puetz Road should be scheduled, Staffwould
prefer to patch the W. Puetz Road segment this year, and spend the savings ofapproximately $145,000 on a project(s) slated
for next year

For the replacement projects, Staffrecommends W. Bosch Lane from S. 92nd Street to termini- $57,000 and W. Fitzsimmons
Road from S 31to termini- $87,000.

If the change in street segments were to occur, Staffwould educate residents on all segments concerning the change.

OPTIONS
A. Authorize staff to replace W. Puetz Road program segments with W. Bosch Lane and W. Fitzsimmons Road. or
B. Direct Staff to stay with current plans forW. Puetz Road in the 2020 Road Program. or
C. Refer to Staffwith additional direction.

FISCAL NOTE
A change in projects is essentially neutral to the 2020 budget.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED
(Option A). Authonze Staff to replace W. Puetz Road segments in the 2020 Road Program with W. Bosch Lane and W.
Fitzsimmons Road

Engineenng· GEM
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"Franklin«
WISCONSIN

DATE: July 31, 2020

Department of Public Works
First to Respond Last to Leave

TO: Paul Rotzenberg, CPA. Director of Finance and Treasurer

COPY: Mayor Steve Olson
Peggy Steeno, Director ofAdministration

FROM: Glen E. Morrow, PE- Director ofPublic Works
Kevin Schlueter- Superintendent of Public Works

SUBJECT: Capital Improvement Fund 46- W. Puetz Road projects

Many previous budgets have forecasted that Puetz Road would be improved to extend the S. 42nd
Street to S. 76th Street cross-section from S. 27th Street (STH 241) to St. Martins Road (STH 100).
A Surface Transportation Urban Program (STP) grant was unsuccessfully sought in 2013 and
2019.

I would like to recommend that if W. Puetz Road is ever to be improved, it will require local
funding.

The two sections are S. 27th Street (STH 241) to S. 42nd Street and S. 76th Street to St. Martins
Road (STH 100).

The 76th Street (CTH U) to St. Martins Drive (STH 100) section is 1.3 miles long. The
construction costs are estimated to be approximately $7.4 million and the total project costs are
almost $8.7 million. Design is requested to commence in 2023 ($200,000) and construction in
2024 ($8.5 million).

The 27th Street (STH 241) to Hunting Park Drive (42nd Street Extended) section is 1.0 miles long.
The construction costs are estimated to be approximately $5.3 million and the total project costs
are over $6.1 million. Design is requested to commence in 2027 ($200,000) and construction in
2028 ($5.9 million).

All estimates are in 2020 dollars.

Celebratng GQualty of Lafe 9229west0oms Road Frarx«in I 53132 9630 P(414)427 7566 F(4'4)427 7691 franklmw1 gov



APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

RESOLUTION TO AWARD DESIGN OF INDUSTRIAL
PARKLIFT STATION (10100 S. 60TH STREET)

REPLACEMENT TO GRAEF-USA, INC. FOR $202,100

MTG.DATE
August 4, 2020

ITEM NO.

6l.
BACKGROUND
On July 7, 2020, Common Council directed Staff to solicit consultants for design of a replacement
for the Industrial Park lift station (10100 S. 60" Street).

Staff solicited three reputable firms for these services and received statement of qualifications and
proposals. The three firms were invited because of intimate knowledge ofFranklin sewer systems,
past performance, and perceived knowledge of required components in this project. The three
firms invited to submit were:

• Foth Infrastructure & Environment, LLC
• GRAEF-USA, Inc.
• R.A. Smith National, Inc.

ANALYSIS
Staffmet with all three firms prior to submittal and completed a thorough review of the submittals.
Although all three firms could provide these services, Staff recommends that GRAEF be selected
because they had the best understanding of the project needs and design components.

Submittals of all three firms are available by requesting them from the City Engineer/Utility
Manager.

OPTIONS
A. Award design oflift station to GRAEF.
B. Refer back to Staffwith further direction.

FISCAL NOTE
The City had planned to abandon the lift station by spending approximately $3 .5 million but
Waukesha's bidders bid this portion for approximately $13 million.

This new lift station will have permanent features, such as an enclosed building for pump controls,
a natural gas generator, and additional features to prevent clogging. A budget will be established
during design but at this time is anticipated to be less than $3.0 million.

The 2020 Sewer Fund Budget includes $3.2 million of appropriations for this project.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Motion to approve Resolution 2020-a resolution to award design of Industrial
Park Lift Station (10100 S. 60th Street) replacement to GRAEF-USA, Inc. for $202,100.

Engineering: GEM



AGREEMENT
between

the City of Franklin
and

Graef-USA Inc
For

Profess1onal Architectural and Engmneermg Services

This AGREEMENT, made and entered into this_day of between the City of
Franklm, 9229 West Loomis Road, Franklin, Wisconsin 53132 (hereinafter "CLIENT") and Graef­
USA Inc (hereinafter "CONSULTANT"), whose principal place of business is 275 W. Wisconsin
Avenue, Suite 300, Milwaukee, WI 53203.

WITNESSETH

WHEREAS, the CONSULTANT is duly qualified and experienced as a municipal services
consultant and has offered services for the purposes specified in thus AGREEMENT; and

WHEREAS, in the judgment of CLIENT, it is necessary and advisable to obtain the services
of the CONSULTANT to provide the Industrial Park Lift Station, as described in Attachment A;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these premises and the following mutual
covenants, terms, and conditions, CLIENT and CONSULTANT agree as follows:

A This AGREEMENT may only be amended by written instrument signed by both
CLIENT and CONSULTANT.

I. BASIC SERVICES AND AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATION

A CONSULTANT shall provide services to CLIENT for the Industrial Park Lift
Station, as described in CONSULTANT's proposal to CLIENT dated July 24,
2020, annexed hereto and incorporated herein as Attachment A.

B. CONSULTANT shall serve as CLIENT's profess1onal representative mn matters
to which this AGREEMENT applies. CONSULTANT may employ the services
of outside consultants and subCONSULTANTs when deemed necessary by
CONSULTANT to complete work under this AGREEMENT following approval
by CLIENT.

C. CONSULTANT is an independent CONSULTANT and all persons furnishing
services hereunder are employees of, or independent subCONSULTANTs to,
CONSULTANT and not of CLIENT. All obligations under the Federal Insurance
Contribution Act (FICA), the Federal Unemployment Tax Act (FUTA), and
income tax withholding are the responsibility of CONSULTANT as employer
CLIENT understands that express AGREEMENTS may exist between
CONSULTANT and its employees regarding extra work, competrtion, and
nondisclosure.

D. Dunng the term of this AGREEMENT and throughout the period of performance
of any resultant AGREEMENT, including extensions, modifications, or additions

Page-1



thereto, and for a period of one () year from the conclusion of such actrvrty, the
parties hereto agree that neither shall solicit for employment any technical or
professional employees of the other without the prior written approval of the
other party

II. FEES AND PAYMENTS

CLIENT agrees to pay CONSULTANT, for and m consideration of the performance of Basic
Services further described mn Attachment A, for a Lump Sum Fee of $198,100.00, subject to the
terms detailed below:

A CONSULTANT may bill CLIENT and be paid for all work satisfactorily
completed hereunder on a monthly basis. CLIENT agrees to pay
CONSULTANT's invoice within 30 days of invoice date for all approved work.

B. Total price will not exceed budget of $201,100.00. For services rendered,
monthly invoices will include a report that clearly states the hours and type of
work completed and the fee earned during the month being invoiced, plus
reimbursable expenses.

C. In consideration of the faithful performance of this AGREEMENT, the
CONSULTANT will not exceed the fee for Basic Services and expenses without
written authorization from CLIENT to perform work over and above that
described in the original AGREEMENT

D. Should CLIENT find deficiencies in work performed or reported, it will notify
CONSULTANT in wnting within thirty (30) days of receipt of invoice and
related report and the CONSULTANT will remedy the deficiencies within thirty
(30) days of receiving CLIENT's review. This subsection shall not be construed
to be a l1mutation of any rights or remedies otherwise available to CLIENT.

III. MODIFICATION AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES

A CLIENT may, in wnting, request changes in the Basic Services required to be
performed by CONSULTANT and require a specification of incremental or
decremental costs prior to change order agreement under this AGREEMENT.
Upon acceptance of the request of such changes, CONSULTANT shall submit a
"Change Order Request Form" to CLIENT for authorization and notice to
proceed signature and return to CONSULTANT. Should any such actual changes
be made, an equitable adjustment will be made to compensate CONSULTANT or
reduce the fixed price, for any incremental or decremental labor or direct costs,
respectively Any clamm by CONSULTANT for adjustments hereunder must be
made to CLIENT m writing no later than forty-five (45) days after receipt by
CONSULTANT of notice of such changes from CLIENT.

IV. ASSISTANCE AND CONTROL

A Glen Morrow will coordinate the work of the CONSULTANT and be solely
responsible for commumcation within the CLIENT's orgamzation as related to all
issues originatmg under this AGREEMENT.

Page-2



B CLIENT will timely provide CONSULTANT with all available infonnation
concerning PROJECT as deemed necessary by CONSULTANT.

C CONSULTANT will appomt, subject to the approval of CLIENT, Paul R. Eiring,
PE, CONSULTANT's Project Manager and other key providers of the Basic
Services. Substitution of other staffmay occur only with the consent of CLIENT.

V. TERMINATION

A This AGREEMENT may be terminated by CLIENT, for its convenience, for
any or no reason, upon written notice to CONSULTANT. Tl11S
AGREEMENT may be termmated by CONSULTANT upon thirty (30) days
written notice. Upon such termination by CLIENT, CONSULTANT shall be
entitled to payment of such amount as shall fairly compensate
CONSULTANT for all work approved up to the date of termination, except
that no amount shall be payable for any losses of revenue or profit from any
source outside the scope of this AGREEMENT, including but not limited to,
other actual or potential agreements for services with other parties.

B In the event that thus AGREEMENT is terminated for any reason,
CONSULTANT shall deliver to CLIENT all data, reports, summaries,
correspondence, and other written, printed, or tabulated material pertaming in
any way to Basic Services that CONSULTANT may have accumulated Such
material is to be delivered to CLIENT whether in completed form or in
process. CLIENT shall hold CONSULTANT harmless for any work that is
incomplete due to early termination.

C. The rights and remedies of CLIENT and CONSULTANT under this section
are not exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies
provided by law or appearing many other article of this AGREEMENT.

VI. INSURANCE

The CONSULTANT shall, during the life of the AGREEMENT, maintain insurance coverage with
an authorized insurance carrier at least equal to the mmimum limits set forth below:

A. Limit of General/Commercial Liability
B Automobile L1ability: Bodily Injury/Property Damage
C Excess Liability for General Commercial or Automobile L1ability
D. Worker's Compensation and Employers' L1ability
E. Professional Liability

$1,000,000
$1,000,000

$10,000,000
$500,000

$2,000,000

Upon the execution of this AGREEMENT, CONSULTANT shall supply CLIENT with a suitable
statement certifying said protection and defining the terms of the policy issued, which shall specify
that such protection shall not be cancelled without thirty (30) calendar days prior notice to CLIENT,
and naming CLIENT as an additional msured for General Liability.
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VII. INDEMNIFICATION AND ALLOCATION OF RISK

A To the fullest extent permitted by law, CONSULTANT shall indemnify and hold
harmless CLIENT, CLIENT'S officers, directors, partners, and employees from and
against costs, losses, and damages (includmg but not limited to reasonable fees and
charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, and reasonable
court or arbitration or other dispute resolution costs) caused solely by the negligent
acts or omissions of CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT'S officers, directors,
partners, employees, and consultants m the performance of CONSULTANT'S
services under this AGREEMENT.

B. Nothing contained within this AGREEMENT is intended to be a waiver or estoppel
of the contracting municipality CLIENT or its insurer to rely upon the limitations,
defenses, and immunities contained within Wisconsin law, including those contained
within Wisconsin Statutes §§ 893.80, 895.52, and 345.05. To the extent that
indemnification is available and enforceable, the municipality CLIENT or its insurer
shall not be hable in indemnity or contribution for an amount greater than the limits
of liability for mumcipal claims established by Wisconsin Law.

VIII. TIME FOR COMPLETION

CONSULTANT shall commence work immediately having received a Notice to Proceed from
CLIENT on or before August 5, 2020 and complete contract documents on or before February 26,
2021

IX. DISPUTES

This AGREEMENT shall be construed under and governed by the laws of the State of Wisconsin.
The venue for any actions arising under this AGREEMENT shall be the Circuit Court for Milwaukee
County. The prevailing party shall be awarded its actual costs of any litigation, including reasonable
attorney fees.

X. RECORDS RETENTION

CONSULTANT shall maintain all records pertaining to this AGREEMENT dunng the term of this
AGREEMENT and for a period of 3 years following its completion. Such records shall be made
available by the CONSULTANT to CLIENT for inspection and copying upon request.

XI. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

A. Professionalism The same degree of care, skill and diligence shall be exercised in the
performance of the services as is possessed and exercised by a member of the same
profession, currently practicing, under similar circumstances, and all persons
providing such services under this AGREEMENT shall have such active
certifications, licenses and permissions as may be required by law.

B Pursuant to Law. Notwithstandmg anythmg to the contrary anywhere else set forth
within this AGREEMENT, all services and any and all materials and/or products
provided by CONSULTANT under this AGREEMENT shall be in compliance with
applicable governmental laws, statutes, decisions, codes, rules, orders, and
ordmances, be they Federal, State, County or Local.

Page-4



C Conflict of Interest. CONSULTANT warrants that neither it nor any of its affiliates
has any financial or other personal interest that would conflict in any manner with the
performance of the services under this Agreement and that neither it nor any of its
affiliates will acquire directly or indtrectly any such interest. CONSULTANT
warrants that it will immediately notify the CLIENT if any actual or potential conflict
of mterest arises or becomes known to the CONSULTANT. Upon receipt of such
notification, a CLIENT review and wntten approval ts required for the CLIENT to
continue to perform work under this Agreement.

D This AGREEMENT may only be amended by written instrument signed by both
CLIENT and CONSULTANT

XII. CONTROLLING TERMS AND PROVISIONS

The aforesaid terms and provisions shall control over any conflicting term or prov1s1on of any
CONSULTANT proposal, Attachment, Exhibit, and standard terms and provisions annexed hereto

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the patties have caused this AGREEMENT to be executed on the day
and year first above written.

CITY OF FRANKLIN, WISCONSIN

BY
Stephen R Olson, Mayor

DATE

BY.
Sandra L Wesolowski, City Clerk

DATE

BY

GRAEF-USA INC

/90-zit"z
PRINT NAME. Paul R. Eiring

TITLE Vice President

DATE July 24, 2020

Paul Rotzenberg, Director of Fmance and
Treasurer

DATE

APPROVED AS TO FORM

Jesse A Wesolowski, City Attorney

DATE
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GR-EF
275West Wisconsin Avenue Suite 300
Milwaukee, WI 53203
414 / 259 1500
414 / 259 0037 fax
www.graef-usa.com

ATTACHMENT A

July 24, 2020

Mr Glen Morrow
Director of Public Works
City of Franklin
9229 W Loomis Road
Franklin, WI 53132

Subject City of Franklin Industrial Park Lift Station

Dear Mr Morrow

Per your request, Graef-USA Inc. (GRAEF) is pleased to provide this proposal for services the
City of Franklin (Client)

This proposal s for professional services for preparing construction documents for the
replacement of an existing sanitary lift station located on the west side of the Franklin
Industrial Park, on South 60" Street approximately 600 feet south of W Franklin Drive This
proposal Is Attachment A of the Agreement between the City of Franklin and GRAEF that
Includes all Terms and Conditions

For this project, GRAEF proposes to provide the following Basic Services

Preliminary Design and Budget Development
• Participate in Kick-Off / Predesign Meeting
• Review local and state codes
• Collect data from Ghent with regards to existing hft station operation
• Perform site visit to review existing conditions
• Perform wetland investigation
• Prepare Conceptual Design Plans to include the following

o Site plan
o Lift Station
o Prefabricated Building

• Attend meeting with Ghent to review concepts (2 meetings)
• Submit concept plans to Franklin Plan Comm1ss1on for review and approval (1

meeting)
• Prepare opinion of probable construction cost of new lift station to be used for City

budgeting. Neither GRAEF nor Ghent has any control over the costs of labor, materials
or equipment, over contractors' methods of determining bid prices, or over competIt1ve
bidding, market or negotiation conditions Accordingly, GRAEF cannot and does not
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warrant or represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from any projected or
established budgetary constraints

Survey, Design, Permitting
• Complete topographic survey

o Contact Diggers Hotline service to have underground utilItIes marked on the
ground surface for survey crew to locate All utility markings provided by this
service will be included on the survey drawing Additional utility information wll be
based on mapping provided to GRAEF by the Ghent.

o Complete a topographic survey based on field measurements, to include
Locations of existing visible features of the site (buildings, utilrtes, walks,
pavement, etc ).
Existing spot elevations and break Imes at sufficient density to allow the
generation of one-foot contour intervals,
Location of utility markings provided by others, and
As-built measurements of storm and sanitary sewer rim and invert locations
and elevations.

o Prepare a topographic map showing existing features and field verified contour
Imes on one-foot contour intervals

• Coordinate performance of soil borings and subsurface investigation
• Coordinate acquIsItions of easement and/or property
• Prepare Construction Document drawings to generally include the following sheets·

o Floor Plans
o Roof Plan
o Exterior Elevations
o Building and Wall Sections
o Foundation Plan
o Process Piping Plans
o HVAC Plans
o Plumbing Plans
o Site Electrical and Lighting Plans
o Electrical Power and Instrumentation Plans
o Electrical One-Line Diagram
o Electrical Process & Instrumentation Diagram (P&ID)
o Electrical Generator Plans
o Site Plan
o Site Erosion Control and Grading Plan
o Site Utility Plan
o Landscaping Plans
o Construction details and schedules

• Prepare ProJect Manual mcludmg front-end contractual sections and technical
specifications

• Submit final plans to Franklin Plan Commission for review and approval (1 meeting)



GR-EF
• Prepare plan review apphcat1on and documents for permits

o Lift Station Project Approval from WDNR
o Water Resources Application for Projects Permit (WRAPP) to WDNR
o Luft Station Building Approval from DSPS

• Participate mn three design meetings with Client

Bidding Services
• Assist City with bidding process
• Respond to bidder's questions and issue addendum (2 addendum)
• Attend bid opening and prepare bid tabulation
• Evaluate bids and prepare letter of recommendation of award
• Prepare notice of award and issued for construction (IFC) documents

Construction Services
• Provide general construction contract administration
• Issue Notice To Proceed to contractor
• Part1c1pate m Preconstruction Meeting
• Part1c1pate m Monthly Construction Progress Meetings (8)
• Review contractor shop drawings submittals
• Respond to contractor request for information (RFI)
• Prepare construction bulletins / field change orders
• Review contractor pay applications
• Assist in change order negotations and prepare change orders
• Conduct site visits to observe construction
• Conduct substantial completion srte visit and punch list
• Conduct final inspection site vsrt
• Prepare record drawings

For this project, It Is our understanding Client will provide the following services, items and/or
Information.

• Existing hft station and sanitary sewer construction plans
• Operational data for the existing lift station including flows
• Maps of sanitary sewers and service area associated with lift station
• Access to the project site
• Venue for meetings and invItatIon of appropriate staff

GRAEF will endeavor to perform the proposed services per the following schedule

• Notice to Proceed
• Conceptual Design Plans to Plan Comm1ssIon
• Submit Final Cost Estimate
• Submit Final Plans to Engineering Department
• Final Design Plans to Plan Commission

August 5, 2020
September 3, 2020
September 18,2020
December 11,2020
January 21, 2021



GR-EF
• Submit Final Plans and Design Report to WDNR
• Submit Final Plans to DSPS
• Construction Documents for bidding
• Begin Construction
• Construction Complete
Subject to change due to GWA Construction

January 26,2021
January 26,2021
February 24, 2021
April 2021*
November 2021 *

Per Section III of the Agreement, GRAEF will provide the following Additional Services for
additional compensation as detailed below

• Additional meeting attendance
• Environmental investigations, remediation coordination or design services required
• Attendance at weekly construction coordination meetings
• Full time inspection or a resident inspector
• Review of value engineering proposals by the Contractor, and resulting changes to

the project documents

For all Basic Services, Client agrees to compensate GRAEF on a lump sum basis 1nclud1ng
reimbursable expenses as noted below.

Preliminary Design and Budget Development
Survey, Design, Permitting
Bidding Services
Construction Services
Real Estate Acquisition
Geotechnical Exploration
TOTAL

$
$
$
$
$
$
$

23,500
99,500
5,900

61,200
3,500
4,500

198,100

Reimbursable expenses including plan review fees, printing and mileage above the
compensation are estimated at $3,000

Graef-USA Inc looks forward to providing services to the City of Franklin

Sincerely,
Graef-USA Inc.

Michael N. Paulos, PE
Principal-In-Charge

Paul R Einng, P E.
Vice President, Project Manager



STATE OF WISCONSIN : CITY OF FRANKLIN : MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2020­----

A RESOLUTION TO AWARD DESIGN OF INDUSTRIAL PARK LIFT STATION
( 10100 S 60TH STREET) REPLACEMENT TO GRAEF-USA, INC. FOR $202,100
.-.-..-..-­

WHEREAS, the City of Franklin desired to abandon the Industrial Park Lift Station by
constructing a gravity sewer to the Ryan Creek Interceptor northwards along S. 60" Street around the
year 2021; and

WHEREAS, the bids to construct a gravity sewer were excessively above budget; and

WHEREAS, the City solicited three consultants to design a replacement lift station in the vicinity
of the existing lift station; and

WHEREAS, GRAEF-USA, Inc. provide the most thorough understanding of the components
needed for the design of a new lift station serving this area.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Mayor and Common Council of the City of
Franklin, Wisconsin, to authorize a professional services contract be executed for the Industnal Park Lift
Station Replacement for an amount of $202,100.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin the
day of,202), by Alderman

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Common Council of the City of Franklin on the
day of,2020.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor

ATTEST

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT
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APPROVAL

Reports &
Recommendations

REQUEST FORCOUNCIL ACTION

RESOLUTION TO ISSUE CHANGE ORDERNO. 1 FOR
2020 CITYHALL SIGN PROJECT

TO MICHAEL'S SIGNS, INC.
IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,350

MTG.DATE
August 4, 2020

ITEM NO.

BACKGROUND
On July 7, 2020, Michael's Signs, Inc. was awarded the contract for the 2020 City Hall Sign. In
the process of permitting, the Franklin Director of Inspection Services requested that the LED
portion be enlarged.

ANALYSIS
Michael's has offered an option that enlarges the LED panels to 3 '5" high x 7' 3" wide. A color
plan is attached.

The Tourism Commission considered this change on July 29, 2020, and are recommending to
Common Council that the Change Order No. 1 be authorized.

Michael's contract was $39,000. This change order will bring the contract to $44,350. This
represents a 13. 7% increase.

The final completion date in the contract was September 30, 2020.

OPTIONS
A. Authorize change order for a larger sign. Or,
B. Refer back to Staff with further direction.

FISCAL NOTE
The Tourism Commission had a budget of $150,000 to include the City Hall Sign, the Gateway
Signs project, and the Banner Project. The Tourism Commission reports that an additional $5,350
is within the budget. The Tourism Commission has its own budget for discretionary spending.

RECOMMENDATION
(Option A) Resolution 2020- a resolution to issue Change Order No. 1 for the 2020 City Hall
Sign Project to Michael's Signs, Inc. in the amount of $5,350.

Engineering Department: GEM
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STATE OF WISCONSIN: CITY OF FRANKLIN: MILWAUKEE COUNTY

RESOLUTION NO. 2020­---

RESOLUTION TO ISSUE CHANGE ORDER NO. 1 FOR
2020 CITY HALL SIGN PROJECT TO MICHAEL'S SIGNS, INC.

IN THE AMOUNT OF $5,350

WHEREAS, Michael's Signs, Inc. is constructing the 2020 City Hall Sign Project; and

WHEREAS, Franklin Director of Inspection Services requested that the LED portion be
enlarged; and

WHEREAS, the Tourism Commission considered this change on July 29, 2020, and
recommended to Common Council that the Change Order No. 1 be authorized; and

WHEREAS, additional materials are needed that results in an increase of $5,350.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Common Council of the City
of Franklin, that the certain officials be authorized to issue Change Order No. 1 for the 2020 City
Hall Sign Project in the amount of $5,350.

Introduced at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin this
___ day of , 2020 by [derman

Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Franklin
this day of 2020.

APPROVED:

Stephen R. Olson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Sandra L. Wesolowski, City Clerk

AYES NOES ABSENT



Change Order No: 01

CHANGE ORDER
CITY OF FRANKLIN

DEPARTMENT OF ENGINEERING

Dated: August 4, 2020

PROJECT NAME 2020 City Hall sign

PROJECT LOCATION 9229 W. Loomis Road- Franklin, WI

CONTRACTOR: Michael's Signs, Inc.

Nature of the Changes: upsize and reconfigure sign to allow for 3'5 high x 7'3" wide LED panels.

These changes result in the following adjustment of Contract Price and Contract Time: (CITY
CONTRACT ONLY)
Original Contract Price $39,000
Contract price prior to this Change Order $39,000
Net INCREASE resulting from this Change Order $ 5,350
Current contract price including this Change Order $44,350
Net (Increase/Decrease) in time resulting from this Change Order Increase O calendar days

The above changes are Approved by:

Mayor

By: Stephen R. Olson

Date:-------

City Clerk

By· Sandra L. Wesolowski

Date:-------

Contractor:

By:

Date: --------
Director of Finance & Treasurer

By: Paul Rotzenberg

Date:-------

City Attorney

By: Jesse A Wesolowski

Date: -------



ammo"A , REQUEST FOR MEETING DATE
COUNCIL ACTION Aug 4, 2020

REPORTS & Report on Expenditures related to the COVID-19 ITEM NUMBERPublic Health Emergency thru July 30, 2020
RECOMMENDATIONS G,/8,

Background
On March 17, 2020 the Common Council authorized spending up to $250,000 in response to the COVID-19
Public Health Emergency.

Thru July 30, 2020, the City has spent $140,737 (up from $134,800 two weeks earlier) of Labor funds, $54,822
(unchanged from two weeks earlier) in operating costs (principally $20,000 in extra postage for elections and other
mailings), and $17,183 on equipment. Details of the expenditures are:

July 16 July 30
Elections 13,878 13,878
Info Systems 3,905 3,905
Admin - postage 10,000 10,000
Finance 128 128
Muni Buildings 7,198 7,198
Police 4,904 4,904
Fire 6,532 6,532
Highway 6,026 6,026
Parks 2,251 2,251
Total 54,822 54,822

Total expenditures and encumbrances are $212,742 (up from $206,805 on July 16) This amount can be reduced by
$133,879 of reimbursable Road to Recovery costs - netting a charge of $78,863. The 'Road to Recovery'
claim (Wl's administration of the Federal Public Health Emergency relief funding) for qualifying expenditures
thru June 30 totaled $133,879 including overtime, purchase of personal protection equipment & supplies, and
equipment to address the pandemic.

In addition, the Library has expended $7,049 on COVID related costs as well, also eligible Road to Recovery
grant funding.

The State has notified the Health Department of an additional Grants for health related expenditures, $307,000
for contact tracing, $30,000 for Pandemic Response Planning and $73,600 for COVID testing

The City recently accepted a $24,400 grant from the Wisconsin Elections Commission related to increased
costs stemming from the crisis.

In addition, It appears that certain city resources are going to be negatively impacted, specifically, ambulance
revenues are down $141,000 from a year ago at the end of June, hotel tax receipts were 30% ($21,500) below
Q1 2019 for Q1 2020, as the major hotels have been effectively shut down, investment income on reduced
interest rates (estimated to reduce annual revenues by $80,000), the school liaison officer- approximately
$22,000 (with the school closed -- the officer was not needed), and landfill siting revenues. These amounts
total $264,500 so far. It is too early to understand the total revenue shortfalls, but clearly there will be some
sizable amounts.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Information Only - no action reauested
Finance Dept - Paul
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APPROVAL ,

Luw t4

REPORTS&

RECOMMENDATIONS

Background

REQUEST FOR

COUNCIL ACTION

June, 2020 Monthly Financial Report

MEETING DATE

Aug 4, 2020

ITEM NUMBER

The June, 2020 Financial Report is attached.

The Finance Committee reviewed this report at its July 28, 2020 meeting and recommends its
acceptance.

The Director of Finance & Treasurer will be available to answer any questions.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED

Receive and place on file.

Finance - PAR



Franklin
ff

WISCONSIN
Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

July 17, 2020

Mayor Olson, Common Council and Finance Committee Members

Paul Rotzenberg, Director of Finance & Treasurer

June 2020 Financial Report

The June, 2020 financial reports for the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, TIO Funds, Solid
Waste Fund, Capital Outlay Fund, Equipment Replacement Fund, Street Improvement Fund,
Capital Improvement Fund, Development Fund, Utility Development, Self Insurance Fund, and
Post Employment Insurance Fund are attached.

The budget allocation is completed using an average of the last five years actual spending
against the Amended Budget. Caution is advised in that spending patterns may have changed
Comments on specific and trending results are provided below to aid understanding or
explaining current year financial results.

Cash & Investments Summary - is provided to aid in understanding the resources available to
meet current activities. Cash & investments are positions with safety and liquidity as primary
objectives as stated in the City's Investment policy. While return potential is not ignored,
investment returns are secondary in the investment decisions. Cash & Investments in the
Governmental Funds totaling $47.0 million decreased $1.5 million since last month. General
fund payroll requirements and TIO Expenditures are the biggest reason for the reduction.

Cash Balances - June & May2020
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May 2020
Financial report

The Property Tax Fund decreased $4.2 million on the June settlement.

Short term investment returns plummeted to 0.25% in June from 1.6% in January. That will cut
investment returns by 87% should the new rates hold for any length of time. To help mitigate
that decline, a further $3 million in short term holdings were converted to 6-18 month CD's
locking in rates from 0.5 to 1.15%.

GENERAL FUND revenues of $19.8 million are $0.2 million greater than budget. Tax
collections were a little faster this year than prior years, and investment interest was stronger
than expected in Q2.

While trends are not clear as yet, some revenue shortfalls in Fines & Forfeitures and Charges
for Services are beginning to show up. It is unclear how great an impact the Public Health Crisis
will have on revenue generation.

Year to Date expenditures of $12.7 million are $1.5 million less than budget. $200,000 of Public
Health Emergency expenditures have been incurred, primarily Public Safety. Some portion of
these costs will be recovered via Federal grants administered by the State.

Clearly, the Emergency will have an adverse impact on the budget. The Common Council
authorized $250,000 of Contingency to address the Emergency, the budget has not yet been
aligned with those costs.

A $7.1 million surplus is $1.7 million greater than budget. That surplus is primarily related to
under spending, with a much smaller favorable revenue component. It is unlikely that results in
Dec will reflect a surplus of this size.

DEBT SERVICE - Debt payments were made March 1 as required. The increased development
activity of late has permitted more impact fee transfers than expected in the budget.

TIF Districts - In general 2020 TID performance is spending down the debt resources acquired
in 2019 to fund project costs. All TIO fund balances have declined $9.8 million in 2020,
principally reflecting the $4 million refunding in TIO 4 and the $4.5 million mortgage in TID7.

TIO 3 - The 2020 increment was collected and the TIO retired $650,000 of debt along
with a $760,000 Municipal Revenue Obligation payment. The TIO will move to a surplus in mid­
summer when state shared revenues are received. TID3's expenditure penod closed in June
2020.

TIO 4 - The 2020 increment was collected. $6.2 million of project contracts were signed
related to the business park infrastructure work. An additional $3 million resource will be needed
to support all the recent project costs approved. The TIO 4 expenditure period closed in June
2020.

TIO 5 - The 2020 Increment was collected. A $4 million portion of the 2018 NAN was
refunded in March.

TID 6 - The Developer is advancing infrastructure work for the new Industrial park.



May 2020
Financial report

TID 7 -Mortgage advances totaling all $4 5 million have been made and reflected as a
Grant and as a Deferred Inflow. No new project costs are expected for quite some time. The
$4.7 million deficit reflects the $4.5 million advance to fund the mortgage note.

LIBRARY FUND - Activity is occurring as planned

TOURISM COMMISSION - Very little activity has occurred so far in 2020. 2020 Room Tax
receipts are expected to be very small as the pandemic has significantly adversely impacted the
two large hotels in the City.

SOLID WASTE FUND -Activity is occurring as budgeted.

CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND - This fund is much more dependent upon landfill siting revenues in
2020 than prior years. Those resources arrive ratably over the year as opposed to Q1 for tax
levy resources. The police have ordered the three squads authorized for 2020 While Highway
has spent $41,000 on trees and ordered the salt spreader.

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND - Landfill siting is the primary resource here. The fund
has significant fund balance to call upon in the short term for the 2020 program.

The 2020 Ambulance arrived in May. Several of the Highway equipment projects are on order.

STREET IMPROVEMENT FUND - The 02 & Q3 General Transportation Aids will fund the
2020 program. The 2020 program has been let.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND - A $943,000 deferred inflow from MMSD will aid 2020
resources. Landfill siting resources are likely to fall significantly short of the 2020 budget, the
Common Council re-aligned landfill siting resources with new expectations. A shortfall in landfill
siting revenues is more than offset by the deferred inflow from MMSD. No changes are needed
in 2020 expenditure appropriations.

The Police Shooting range project was completed, however bills are still coming in. The S 68"
Street hill mitigation project has been let and has started. The Pleasant View Park Pavilion
project is wrapping up. The Ryan Creek Odor control project is moving along.

DEVELOPMENT FUND- Revenues thru June are falling behind 2019 and expectations. This
may signal a slow down in development activity. No large permit has been pulled so far in
2020.

The March 1 debt payments were fully funded in 2020 for the first time in several years, and
those transfers out to the Debt Service fund were made. As the park projects are getting
completed, park impact fees are moving out. However, without progress on more park projects,
park impact fees are likely to be rebated later in 2020

There are now $5.1 million of park impact fees on hand and $2.6 million water impact fees. The
acceptance of the Loomis Road water main represents the $213,000 of water impact fee usage.



May 2020
Financial report

UTILITY DEVELOPMENT FUND - Activity in this fund centers on balances rolling to the tax roll
in December each year as well as collection of utility special assessments.

SANITARY SEWER FUND - Revenues and operating costs are on budget thru June.

WATER UTILITY FUND -- revenues are very close to plan, with heavier residential use related
to stay at home orders, and lighter Commercial/industrial use for the same reasons. Operating
costs are less than might be expected, resulting in improved operating results.

SELF INSURANCE FUND - Revenues are approximately on plan, as participation has
remained steady compared to 2019. Benefit payments declined sharply in April/May, as
participants refrained from seeking health care during the Pandemic. The Public Health
Emergency has delayed some elective procedures, further delaying costs. June claim costs
returned to normal. The plan has an unexpected $557,000 surplus, when a deficit was planned
for 2020, raising the fund balance to over $3 million.

RETIREE HEALTH FUND - Insurance results are on par with the prior year. The decline in the
equity markets moderated in April and May, and the fixed income position shielded the portfolio
some. There are still some net investment losses from the Feb/March sharp declines.



City of Franklin
Cash & Investments Summary

June 30, 2020

American Institutional Local Prior
Cash Deposit Capital Government Total Month

Management Management Invest Pool Total

General Fund $ 509,642 $ 5,610,356 $ 7,108,107 $ 3,284,682 $ 16,512,787 $16,822,793

Debt Servce Funds 17,762 569,006 551,683 1,138,451 1,138,247

TIF DIstncts 75,833 8,752,878 1,671,966 10,500,677 11,578,001

Nonmayor
Governmental Funds 670,608 10,342,571 7,800,441 18,813,620 18,933,730

Total Governmental
Funds 1,273,845 25,274,811 17,132,197 3,284,682 46,965,535 48,472,770

Sewer Fund 494,081 1,101,899 1,595,980 1,665,617

Water Utility 21,116 2,032,661 429,584 2,483,361 2,613,026

Self Insurance Fund 11,084 1,308,709 1,876,087 3,195,880 3,124,817

Other Designated Funds 12,227 12,227 14,169

Total Other Funds 538,508 4,443,269 2,305,671 7,287,448 7,417,628

Total Pooled
Cash & Investments 1,812,353 29,718,080 19,437,868 3,284,682 54,252,983 55,890,398

Property Tax Fund (338,690) 1,079,463 740,773 4,942,920

Total Trust Funds (338,690) 1,079,463 740,773 4,942,920

Grand Total
Cash & Investments 1,473,663 30,797,543 19,437,868 3,284,682 54,993,756 60,833,318

Average Rate of Return 025% 192% 014%

Maturities:
Demand 1,473,663 27,385,543 2,789 3,284,682 32,146,678 36,960,128
Fed Income & Equities
2020 -O2 1,000,817
2020 -Q3 167,000 167,000 167,000
2020 -Q4 500,000 4,539,387 5,039,387 5,045,736
2021 -O1 1,245,000 2,024,219 3,269,219 3,022,344
2021-O2 1,000,000 2,035,136 3,035,136 3,038,334
2021 -Q3 2,038,994 2,038,994
2021 500,000 3,581,377 4,081,377 6,376,345
2022 4,696,062 4,696,062 4,702,458
2023 519,904 519,904 520,156

1,473,663 30,797,543 19,437,868 3,284,682 54,993,756 60,833,318

7/16/2020 Fmndata Qtrrpt Cash & Investments June 2020



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the 6 months ended June 30, 2020

2020 2020 2020 2020 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

Property Taxes $ 19,015,200 $ 19,015,200 $ 16,309,737 $ 16,484,031 $ 174,294
Other Taxes 676,400 676,400 194,317 174,610 (19,707)
Intergovernmental Revenue 1,746,400 1,746,400 445,586 489,598 44,012
Licenses & Permits 903,200 903,200 494,859 574,428 79,569
Law and OrdinanceViolations 546,000 546,000 301,700 239,214 (62,486)
Public Charges for Services 2,527,300 2,351,900 A 1,017,769 954,405 (63,364)
Intergovernmental Charges 182,000 182,000 84,070 83,786 (284)
Investment Income 343,580 343,580 178,665 245,133 66,468
Sale of Capital Assets 10,750 10,750 5,785 5,414 (371)
Miscellanous Revenue 128,500 128,500 82,070 89,685 7,615
Transfers from Other Funds 1,050,000 1,050,000 550,218 537,600 (12,618)

Total Revenue $ 27,129,330 $ 26,953,930 $ 19,664,776 $ 19,877,904 $ 213,128
101 08%

2020 2020 2020 2020 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Expenditures Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

General Government $ 3,365,482 $ 3,431,643 A $ 1,838,260 $ 1,544,841 $ (293,419)
Public Safety 18,446,978 18,676,439 9,375,179 8,847,914 (527,265)
PublicWorks 4,151,677 4,906,734 2,296,411 1,945,766 (350,645)
Health & Human Services 737,635 737,635 350,445 301,824 (48,621)
Culture & Recreation 210,448 210,448 98,934 109,214 10,280
Conservation and Development 619,400 716,294 329,406 310,249 (19,157)
Contingency & Unclassified 1,487,500 1,315,870 A 146,782 37,775 (109,007)
Anticipated Underexpenditures (315,000) (315,000) (157,500) 157,500
Transfers to Other Funds 524,000 524,000
Encumbrances (339,531) (339,531)

Total Expenditures $ 29,228,120 $ 30,204,063 $ 14,277,917 $ 12,758,052 $ (1,519,865)
89 36%

Excess of revenue over
(under) expenditures (2,098,790) (3,250,133) 5,386,859 7,119,852 $ 1,732,993

Fund Balance, beginning of year 8,633,754 8,633,754 8,633,754

Fund Balance, end of perod $ 6,534,964 $ 5,383,621 $ 15,753,606

A Represents an amendment to Adopted Budget
E Represents an ecumbrance for current year from prior year



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenue
For the 6 months ended June 30, 2020

2020 2020 2020 2020 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

Property Taxes $ 19,015,200 $ 19,015,200 $ 16,309,737 $ 16,484,031 $ 174,294

Other Taxes:
Cable television franchise fees 480,000 480,000 131,039 113,322 (17,717)
Mobile Home 21,000 21,000 10,500 10,453 (47)
Room tax 175,400 175,400 52,778 50,835 (1,943)

Total Other taxes 676,400 676,400 194,317 174,610 (19,707)

Intergovernmental Revenue:
State shared revenue-per capita 405,000 405,000
Expenditure restraint revenue 150,000 150,000
State computer aid 228,000 228,000
State transportation aids 535,000 535,000 277,772 401,987 124,215
Fire insurance dues 165,000 165,000 99,000 (99,000)
Other grants & aid 263,400 263,400 68,814 87,611 18,797

Total Intergovernmental Revenue 1,746,400 1,746,400 445,586 489,598 44,012

Licenses & Perm its:
Licenses 162,000 162,000 140,469 127,065 (13,404)
Permits 741,200 741,200 354,390 447,363 92,973

903,200 903,200 494,859 574,428 79,569

Law & Ordinance Violations:
Fines, Forfeitures & Penalties 546,000 546,000 301,700 239,214 (62,486)

Public Charges for Services:
Planning Related Fees 72,800 72,800 38,775 36,180 (2,595)
General Government 8,700 8,700 4,415 6,764 2,349
Architectural Board Review 4,500 4,500 2,033 3,130 1,097
Police & Related 6,800 56,800 A 22,892 998 (21,894)
Ambulance Services - ALS 1,350,000 1,350,000 661,273 302,244 (359,029)
Ambulance Services - BLS 218,019 218,019
Fire Safety Training 1,500 1,500 518 1,143 625
Fire Sprinkler Plan Review 40,000 40,000 19,393 2,450 (16,943)
Fire Inspections 19,500 19,500 9,692 3,197 (6,495)
Quarry Reimbursement 43,000 43,000 2,217 21,020 18,803
Weed Cutting 7,000 7,000 799 (321) (1,120)
Engineering Fees 330,000 330,000 97,811 90,865 (6,946)
Public Works Fees 3,500 16,100 6,421 61,754 55,333
Weights & Measures 7,600 7,600 36 (36)
Landfill Operations - Siting 438,000 200,000 100,000 169,574 69,574
Landfill Operations - Emerald Park 80,000 80,000 26,235 31,683 5,448
Health Department 114,400 114,400 25,259 5,705 (19,554)

Total Public Charges for Services $ 2,527,300 $ 2,351,900 $ 1,017,769 $ 954,405 $ (63,364)

A Represents anamendment to Adopted Budget
E Represents an ecumbrance for current year from prior year



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenue
For the 6 months ended June 30, 2020

2020 2020 2020 2020 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

Intergovernmental Charges:
Milwaukee County - Paramedics $ 100,000 $ 100,000 $ 37,976 $ 60,070 $ 22,094
School Liaison Officer 82,000 82,000 46,094 23,716 (22,378)

Total Intergovernmental Charges 182,000 182,000 84,070 83,786 (284)

Investment Income:
Interest on Investments 240,500 240,500 127,125 97,310 (29,815)
Market Value Change on Investments 86,826 86,826
Interest - Tax Roll 100,000 100,000 50,000 58,823 8,823
Other Interest 3,080 3,080 1,540 2,174 634

Total Investment Income 343,580 343,580 178,665 245,133 66,468

Sale of Capital Assets 10,750 10,750 5,785 5,414 (371)

Miscellaneous Revenue:
Rental of Property 50,000 50,000 25,857 18,554 (7,303)
Refunds/Reimbursements 35,000 35,000 14,766 8,459 (6,307)
Insurance Dividend 40,000 40,000 40,000 58,683 18,683
Other Revenue 3,500 3,500 1,447 3,989 2,542

Total Miscellaneous Revenue 128,500 128,500 82,070 89,685 7,615

Transfer from Other Funds:
Water Utility-Tax Equivalent 1,050,000 1,050,000 550,218 537,600 (12,618)
Total Transfers from Other Funds 1,050,000 1,050,000 550,218 537,600 (12,618)

Total Revenue $ 27,129,330 $ 26,953,930 $ 19,664,776 $ 19,877,904 $ 213,128
101 08%

A Represents an amendment to Adopted Budget
E Represents an ecumbrance for current year from prior year



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Expenditures
For the 6 months ended June 30, 2020

2020 2020 2020 2020 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Expenditures Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

General Government:
Mayor & Aldermen - Labor $ 65,891 $ 65,891 $ 32,945 $ 32,946 $ (1)
Mayor & Aldermen - Non-Personnel 33,501 34,345 A 23,321 20,619 E 2,702
Municipal Court - Labor 193,490 193,490 96,745 93,182 3,563
Municipal Court - Non-Personnel 19,625 19,625 16,017 12,485 3,532
City Clerk Labor 353,001 353,001 176,500 155,810 20,690
City Clerk - Non-Personnel 27,200 27,200 14,233 11,865 2,368
Elections - Labor 70,404 70,404 35,202 22,004 13,198
Elections - Non-Personnel 16,500 16,500 9,633 14,114 (4,481)
Information Services - Labor 131,451 236,451 A 118,226 64,500 53,726
Information Services - Non-Personnel 429,878 346,271 187,705 221,348 E (33,643)
Administration - Labor 411,533 411,533 205,767 114,834 E 90,933
Administration - Non-Personnel 129,655 129,655 61,035 54,906 6,129
Finance - Labor 419,877 419,877 209,939 212,664 (2,725)
Finance - Non-Personnel 115,710 115,710 62,145 50,872 11,273
Independent Audit 30,050 30,050 26,770 24,950 1,820
Assessor - Non-Personnel 233,350 233,350 116,636 55,054 61,582
Legal Services 357,000 357,000 181,860 141,910 39,950
Municipal Buildings - Labor 114,001 154,001 77,001 50,079 26,922
Municipal Buildings - Non-Personnel 117,515 121,439 A 52,956 48,468 E 4,488
Property/liability insurance 95,850 95,850 133,624 142,231 (8,607)

Total General Government 3,365,482 3,431,643 1,838,260 1,544,841 293,419

Public Safety:
Police Department - Labor 9,167,605 9,217,605 A 4,608,803 4,362,413 246,390
Police Department - Non-Personnel 1,226,530 1,249,060 A 653,941 530,889 E 123,052
Pandemic Emergency - Labor 132,369 (132,369)
Fire Department - Labor 6,286,453 6,286,453 3,143,227 2,968,044 175,183
Fire Department - Non-Personnel 566,500 566,831 A 290,108 269,830 20,278
Public Fire Protection 283,300 283,300 142,498 139,981 2,517
Building Inspect ion - Labor 768,655 846,955 423,478 370,766 52,712
Building Inspection - Non-Personnel 140,335 218,635 107,044 66,022 41,022
Weights and Measures 7,600 7,600 6,080 7,600 (1,520)

Total Public Safety 18,446,978 18,676,439 9,375,179 8,847,914 527,265

Public Works:
Engineering - Labor 590,261 590,261 295,130 232,301 62,829
Engineering - Non-Personnel 342,820 342,820 169,638 173,946 (4,308)
Highway - Labor 1,974,746 2,604,746 1,302,373 878,246 424,127
Highway - Non-Personnel 890,800 975,737 A 374,690 515,431 E (140,741)
Street Lighting 346,000 386,120 A 153,278 145,803 E 7,475
Weed Control 7,050 7,050 1,302 39 1,263

Total Public Works $ 4,151,677 $ 4,906,734 $ 2,296,411 $ 1,945,766 $ 350,645

A Represents an amendment to Adopted Budget
E Represents an ecumbrance for current year from prior year



City of Franklin
General Fund

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the 6 months ended June 30, 2020

2020 2020 2020 2020 Var to Budget
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Surplus

Expenditures Budget Budget Budget Actual (Deficiency)

Health & Human Services:
Public Health - Labor $ 628,585 $ 628,585 $ 314,293 $ 275,233 $ 39,060
Public Health - Non-Personnel 65,250 65,250 12,842 9,102 3,740
Animal Control 43,800 43,800 23,310 17,489 5,821

Total Health & Human Services 737,635 737,635 350,445 301,824 48,621

Culture & Recreation:
SeniorTravel & Activities 24,000 24,000 10,264 1,180 9,084
Parks - Labor 119,998 119,998 59,999 79,941 (19,942)
Parks - Non-Personnel 66,450 66,450 28,671 28,093 E 578

Total Culture & Recreation 210,448 210,448 98,934 109,214 (10,20)

Conservation & Development:
Planning - Labor 358,680 358,680 179,340 176,159 E 3,181
Planning - Non-Personnel 74,950 133,844 A 47,703 67,616 E (19,913)
Economic Dev - Labor 126,770 126,770 63,385 61,101 2,284
Economic Dev - Non-Personnel 59,000 97,000 A 38,978 5,373 E 33,605

Total Conservation & Development 619,400 716,294 329,406 310,249 19,157

Contingency & Unclassified:
Restricted - other 1,335,000 1,035,000 A
Unrestricted 125,000 253,370 A 135,262 37,775 E 97,487
Unclassified 27,500 27,500 11,520 11,520

Total Contingency & Unclassified 1,487,500 1,315,870 146,782 37,775 109,007

Anticipated Underexpenditures (315,000) (315,000) (157,500) (315,000)

Transfers to Other Funds:
Capital Improvement Fund 500,000 500,000
Other Funds 24,000 24,000

Total Transfers to Other Funds 524,000 524,000

Total Expenditures $ 29,228,120 $ 30,204,063 $ 14,277,917 $ 13,097,583 $ 1,022,834

Less Encumbrances (339,531)
Net Expenditures $ 12,758,052

% ot YTD Budget 89 36%

A Represents an amendment to Adopted Budget
E Represents an ecumbrance for current year from prior year



City of Franklin
General Fund
Balance Sheet

ASSETS
Cash & Investments
Accounts & Taxes & Interest Receivable
Due from Other Funds & Advances
Due from Other Governments
Prepaid Expenditures & Inventories

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Due to Other Funds & Governments
Special Deposits
Unearned Revenue

Total Liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - Inventories, Prepaids, Advances, Assigned
Unassigned
Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities & Fund Balances

6/30/2020
$ 16,504,110

2,977,934
123,200

2,822
11,562

$ 19,619,628

$ 237,717
899,089
121,092
72,982

2,535,142
3,866,022

134,762
15,618,844
15,753,606

$ 19,619,628



City of Franklin
Debt Service Funds

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2019 2019
Special Debt 2020 Special Debt 2019

Assets Assessment Service Total Assessment Service Total
Cash and investments $ 787,485 $ 350,966 $1,138,451 $ 734,270 $ 419,391 $ 1,153,661
Special assessment recervable 30,255 30,255 58,474 58,474

Total Assets $ 817,740 $ 350,966 $1,168,706 $ 792,744 $ 419,391 $ 1,212,135

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Unearned & unavailable revenue $ 30,255 $ $ 30,255 $ 58,474 $ $ 58,474

Unassigned fund balance 787,485 350,966 1,138,451 734,270 419,391 1,153,661
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 817,740 $ 350,966 $ 1,168,706 $ 792,744 $ 419,391 $1,212,135

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
Special Debt Year-to-Date Original Special Debt Year-to-Date

Revenue Assessment Service Actual Budget Assessment Service Actual
Property Taxes $ $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $1,100,000 $ $ 1,300,000 $ 1,300,000
Special Assessments 6,221 6,221 65,000 5,729 5,729
Investment Income 13,634 3,246 16,880 12,000 14,207 7,643 21,850
GO Debt Issuance

Total Revenue 19,855 1,103,246 1,123,101 1,177,000 19,936 1,307,643 1,327,579

Expenditures:
Debt Serice

Principal 1,425,000 1,425,000 1,387,500 1,405,000 1,405,000
Interest 74,961 74,961 199,132 74,256 74,256
Bank Fees 1,200 1,200 1,140 800 800

Total expenditures 1,501,161 1,501,161 1,587,772 1,480,056 1,480,056

Transfers in 397,950 397,950 453,682 323,419 323,419
Transfers out (600,00o
Net change mn fund balances 19 855 35 19,890 (557,090) 19,936 151,006 170,942

Fund balance, begmmng of year 767,630 350,931 1,118,561 1,118,561 714,334 268,385 982,719

Fund balance, end of period $ 787,485 $ 350,966 $1,138,451 $ 561,471 $ 734,270 $ 419,391 $1,153,661

7/13/2020 L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2020\Monthly\Debt Service\June 2020
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City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #3 - Northwestern Mutual

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash & investments $ 725,896 $ 3,645,511
Taxes receivable
Total Assets $ 725,896 $ 3,645,511

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ $ 833,343
Accrued liabilities 865,136 865,135
Unearned revenue
Total Liabtltties 865,136 1,698,478

Assigned fund balance (139,240) 1,947,033
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 725,896 $ 3,645,511

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General property tax levy $ 1,409,000 $ 1,409,000 $ 1,409,000 $ 1,401,748 $ 1,114,683
State exempt ad 507,500 507,500 13,750 33,870 6,293
Investment income 25,000 25,000 14,271 7,752 75,717
Bond proceeds 3,001,886
Total revenue 1,941,500 1,941,500 1,437,021 1,443,370 4,198,579

Expenditures
Debt service principal 665,000 665,000 665,000 665,000
Debt service interest & fees 80,265 80,265 42,000 45,075 16,201
Administrative expenses 7,250 7,250 3,625 3,690 95,878
Professional services 6,000 6,000 3,000 750 1,000
Capital outlays 880,082
Development incentive & obligation payments 711,005 760,005 735,505 760,005 2,791,990
Total expenditures 1,469,520 1,518,520 1,449,130 1,474,520 2,905,069

Revenue over (under) expenditures 471,980 422,980 $ (12,109) (31,150) 1,293,510

Fund balance, beginning of year (127,252) (127,252) (108,090) 653,523

Fund balance, end of period $ 344,728 $ 295,728 $ (139,240) $ 1,947,033

7/16/2020 L 41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2020\Monthly\CDA TIF 3June



Assets
Cash & investments
Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Total Liabilities

Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #4 - Ascension Hospital

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
$ 3,201,668 $ 4,249,155
$ 3,201,668 $ 4,249,155

$ 519,032 $ 4,661
519,032 4,661

2,682,636 4,244,494

$ 3,201,668 $ 4,249,155

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General property tax levy $ 1,144,700 $ 1,144,700 $ 1,144,700 $ 1,138,802 $ 1,011,224
Payment in Lieu of Taxes 120,000 120,000 120,000 73,889 121,759
State exempt aid 48,900 48,900 16,150 37,145 4,827
Investment income 74,000 74,000 37,000 70,848 76,147
Bond proceeds 6,200,000 6,200,000 3,100,000
Total revenue 7,587,600 7,587,600 4,417,850 1,320,684 1,213,957

Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees 75,000 75,000 37,500
Administrative expenses 30,290 30,290 15,145 19,476 22,167
Professional services 1,000 127,675 773,337 717,695 137,149
Capital outlay 11,000,000 11,656,606 5,118,803 7,249,813 714,802
Encumbrances (5,280,996) (813,196)
Total expendrtures 11,106,290 11,889,571 5,944,785 2,705,988 60,922

Revenue over (under) expenditures (3,518,690) (4,301,971) (1,526,935) (1,385,304) 1,153,035

Fund balance, begmnmg of year 4,229,419 4,067,940 4,067,940 3,091,459

Fund balance, end of penod $ 710,729 $ (234,031) $ 2,682,636 $ 4,244,494

7/16/2020 L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2020\Monthly\COA TIF 4June



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #5 - Ballpark Commons

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash & investments $ 863,276 $ 4,339,140
Accounts receivable
Total Assets $ 863,276 $ 4,339,140

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ $ 9,109
Due to other funds
lnterfund advance from Development Fund
Total Luabilttes 9,109

Assigned fund balance 863,276 4,330,031
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 863,276 $ 4,339,140

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
General property tax levy $ 756,000 $ 756,000 $ 378,000 $ 721,361 $ 30,951
Payment in lieu of taxes 91,560
State exempt aid 12,900 12,900 6,450 12,883 123
Investment income 1,000 1,000 500 22,168 76,865
Bond proceeds 10,600,102
Total revenue 769,900 769,900 384,950 847,972 10,708,041

Expenditures
Debt servce interest & fees 890,763 4,890,763 2,246,971 4,427,844 10,427,243
Administrative expenses 12,250 12,250 6,622 3,690 23,244
Professional services 16,050 48,188 10,095 35,035 100,627
Capital outlay 4,565,517
Development incentive & obligation payments
Encumbrances (27,160) (53, 106)
Total expenditures 919,063 4,951,201 2,263,688 4,439,409 15,063,525

Revenue over (under) expenditures (149,163) (4,181,301) $ (1,878,738) (3,591,437) (4,355,484)

Fund balance, beginning of year 376,133 376,133 4,454,713 8,685,515

Fund balance, end of penod $ 226,970 $ (3,805,168) $ 863,276 $ 4,330,031

7/16/2020 L \41803 VOL 1 Fmance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2020\Monthly\CDA TIF 5June



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #6 - Loomis & Ryan

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash & investments $ 5,328,551 $ 6,537,042
Total Assets $ 5,328,551 $ 6,537,042

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 13,119 $ 670
Advances from other funds 13,000
Total Liabilities 13,119 13,670

Assigned fund balance 5,315,432 6,523,372
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 5,328,551 $ 6,537,042

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
Investment income $ 32,500 $ 32,500 $ 16,250 $ 25,383 $ 12,995
Bond proceeds 3,250,000 3,250,000 1,625,000 6,638,320
Total revenue 3,282,500 3,282,500 1,641,250 25,383 6,651,315

Expenditures
Debt service interest & fees $ 326,940 $ 326,940 $ 155,225 $ 109,850 $ 109,100
Administrative expenses 30,290 30,290 15,070 15,428 2,983
Professional services 8,750 9,906 4,953 28,123 3,672
Capital outlay 3,000,000 9,000,000 4,500,000
Encumbrances (1,600) (1,156)
Total expenditures 3,365,980 9,367,136 4,675,248 151,801 114,599

Revenue over (under) expenditures (83,480) (6,084,636) $ (3,033,998) (126,418) 6,536,716

Fund balance, beginning of year 626,563 626,563 5,441,850 (13,344)

Fund balance, end of period $ 543,083 $ (5,458,073) $ 5,315,432 $ 6,523,372

7/16/2020 L41803 VOL 1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2020\Monthly\CDA TIF 6June



City of Franklin
Tax Increment Financing District #7 - Velo Village

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash & investments $ 394,687 $ (7,020)
Mortgage receivable 4,500,000
Total Assets $ 4,894,687 $ (7,020)

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ $ 861
Advances from other funds 1,745,000
Deferred Inflow 4,500,000
Total Liabilities 6,245,000 861

Assigned fund balance (1,350,313) (7,881)
Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 4,894,687 $ (7,020)

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2019
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Actual Actual

Revenue
Investment & misc income $ 270,000 $ 270,000 $ 14,118 $
Bond proceeds
Total revenue 270,000 270,000 14,118

Expenditures
Debt service interest, fees, bond issuance $ 268,549 $ 268,549 $ 33,507 $
Administrative expenses 7,250 7,250 3,690 114
Professional services 6,750 30,850 9,479 16,867
Capital outlay 166,663
Development incentive & obligation payments 4,500,000
Encumbrances (5,900) (9,100)
Total expenditures 282,549 306,649 4,707,439 7,881

Revenue over (under) expendrtures (12,549) (36,649) (4,693,321) (7,881)

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,970,100 2,970,100 3,343,008

Fund balance, end of penod $ 2,957,551 $ 2,933,451 $ (1,350,313) $ (7,881)

7116/2020 L \41803 VOL1 Fmance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2020\Monthly\CDA TIF 7June



City of Franklin
Library Fund
Balance Sheet

June 30, 2020 and 2019

Operating Restricted
Assets 2020 2019 2020 2019

Cash and investments $ 1,297,580 $ 1,206,112 $ 138,513 $ 154,472
Total Assets $ 1,297,580 $ 1,206,112 $ 138,513 $ 154,472

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 14,284 $ 17,251 $ 2,989 $ 2,533
Accrued salaries & wages 29,330 26,067
Assigned fund balance 1,253,966 1,162,794 135,524 151,939

Total Lablrties and Fund Balance $ 1,297,580 $ 1,206,112 $ 138,513 $ 154,472

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance - Operating Fund
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Annual Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Property taxes $ 1,340,500 $ 1,340,500 $ 1,340,500 $ 1,340,500 $ 1,312,700
Reciprocal borrowing (restricted) 40,000 40,000 163 671
Landfill Siting 20,000 20,000 10,000 8,311
Investment income 15,000 15,000 7,500 12,287 18,037
Transfers In 8,100

Total Revenue 1,415,500 1,415,500 1,358,163 1,361,098 1,339,508

Expenditures:
Salares and benefits 998,134 998,134 499,067 466,678 444,397
Contractual services 10,250 10,250 8,404 7,637 9,593
Supples 23,100 23,100 9,358 10,055 19,715
Services and charges 85,717 85,717 44,569 63,830 48,085
Contingency 6,240
Facility charges 195,418 195,418 86,185 83,543 98,255
Capital outlay 154,000 154,000 48,010 38,816 46,338
Encumbrances (6,240)

Total Library Costs 1,466,619 1,466,619 695,593 - 670,559 666,383

Total expenditures 1,466,619 1,466,619 695,593 670,559 666,383

Revenue over (under) expenditures (51,119) (51,119) 662,570 690,539 673,125

Fund balance, beginning of year 452,085 563,427 563,427 489,669

Fund balance, end of period $ 400,966 $ 512,308 $ 1,253,966 $ 1,162,794

7/13/2020 Findata Qtrrpt Library 2nd Quarter 2020



City of Franklin
Tourism Commission

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets
Cash and Investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2020 2019
$ 469,319 $ 345,567

$ 469,319 $ 345,567

$ 331 $ 1,000
468,988 344,567

$ 469,319 $ 345,567

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Room Taxes $ 210,179 $ 210,179 $ 25,378 $ (961) $ 437
Investment Income 2,098 3,744

Total revenue 210,179 210,179 25,378 1,137 4,181

Expenditures:
Personal Services 35,000 35,000 17,500
Supplies & Printing 15,000 15,000 5,000 25
Tramnng & Memberships 10,000 10,000 7,069 1,000 439
Tounsm Events 10,000 10,000 413 154
Marketing 60,000 61,371 14,983 2,446 37,938
Adversing 309,000 309,000 154,500
Encumbrances (1,371) (3,848)

Total expenditures 439,000 440,371 199,465 2,100 34,683

Revenue over (under) expenditures (228,821) (230,192) (174,087) (963) (30,502)

Fund balance, beginning of year 234,658 469,951 469,951 376,069

Fund balance, end of period $ 5,837 $ 239,759 $ 468,988 $ 345,567

7/13/2020 L 41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2020\Quarterly\Tourism 2nd quarter 2020



Assets
Cash and investments
Accrued Receivables

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Accrued salaries & wages
Restricted fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Solid Waste Collection Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020
$ 1,452,726

356
$ 1,453,082

$ 162,466
460

1,290,156
$ 1,453,082

2019
$ 1,252,276

242
$ 1,252,518

$ 139,867
458

1,112,193
$ 1,252,518

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2019
Original YTD Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue Budget Budget Actual Actual
Grants $ 69,000 69,000 $ 68,834 $ 68,858
User Fees 1,534,349 1,533,034 1,535,055 1,214,694
Landfill Operations-tippage 365,000 140,068 149,355 143,091
Investment Income 20,000 11,346 15,081 19,621
Sale of Recyclables 1,500 750 1,168

Total Revenue 1,989,849 1,754,198 1,769,493 1,446,264

Expenditures:
Personal Services 17,638 8,819 7,766 6,573
Refuse Collection 722,300 348,512 357,680 355,552
Recycling Collection 697,149 336,295 356,408 197,078
Leaf & Brush Pickups 60,000 19,995 20,000 20,000
Tippage Fees 469,200 171,925 192,073 184,620
Miscellaneous 5,000 2,543 535 995

Total expenditures 1,971,287 888,089 934,462 764,818

Revenue over (under) expenditures 18,562 866,109 835,031 681,446

Fund balance, beginning of year 501,072 455,125 430,747

Fund balance, end of period $ 519,634 $ 1,290,156 $ 1,112,193

7/13/2020 Fmdata Qtrrpt Solid Waste June 2020



City of Franklin
Capital Outlay Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets
Cash and investments
Accrued Receivables

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
$ 712,327 $ 695,007

2,727 1,818

$ 715,054 $ 696,825

$ 44,569 $ 29,607
670,485 667,218

$ 715,054 $ 696,825

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Property Taxes $ 295,700 $ 295,700 $ 295,700 $ 295,700 $ 452,800
Grants 6,000 29,800 14,900 16,128 1,606
Landfill Siting 483,900 475,000 287,931 199,262 199,550
Investment Income 7,800 7,800 3,900 9,763 11,470
Miscellanous Revenue 25,000 43,125 18,919 22,707 4,839

Total Revenue 818,400 851,425 621,350 543,560 670,265

Expenditures:
General Government 232,050 232,050 40,474 109,792 64,776
Public Safety 447,600 557,766 409,482 374,464 382,589
Public Works 162,800 194,382 128,501 68,647 27,117
Health and Human Services 900 900 16 900 54
Culture and Recreation 76,000 76,000 36,627 2,866
Conservation and Development 10,000 10,000 5,404 1,467 503
Contingency 60,000 43,800 9,908
Encumbrances (190,484) (49,815)

Total expenditures 989,350 1,114,898 630,412 364,786 428,090

Revenue over (under) expenditures (170,950) (263,473) {9,062) 178,774 242,175

Fund balance, beginning of year 239,473 491,711 491,711 425,043

Fund balance, end of period $ 68,523 $ 228,238 $ 670,485 $ 667,218

A Portion of Municipal Building, Police, Highway & Parks appropriations are contingent upon Landfill Siting
revenue growth

7/13/2020 Findata Qtrrpt Capital Outlay June 2020



City of Franklin
Equipment Replacement Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets
Cash and investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Luabrites and Fund Balance

2020 2019
$ 2,535,836 $ 3,089,451

$ 2,535,836 $ 3,089,451

$ 474 $
2,535,362 3,089,451

$ 2,535,836 $ 3,089,451

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2020 2019
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Budget Actual Actual
Property Taxes $ $ $ $ $ 175,000
Landfill 677,600 400,000 221,586 221,700 228,060
Investment Income 37,400 37,400 18,700 57,108 60,400
Grants 178,624
Property Sales 56,500 56,500 19,087 727

Total revenue 771,500 493,900 259,373 457 432 464 187

Expenditures:
Public Safety 241,000 257,974 241,429 247,993 633,395
Pubhc Works 609,000 799,000 399,524 798,334 20,431
Encumbrances (596,195) (633,395)

Total expenditures 850,000 1,056,974 640,953 450,132 20,431

Revenue over (under) expenditures (78,500) (563,074) (381,580) 7,300 443,756

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,266,695 2,528,062 2,528,062 2,645,695

Fund balance, end of period $ 2,188,195 $ 1,964,988 $ 2,535,362 $ 3,089,451

7/13/2020 L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2020\Monthly\Equip Replacement June 2020



Assets
Cash and investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Street Improvement Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020
$ 933,850
$ 933,850

$ 948
932,902

$ 933,850

2019
$ 774,520
$ 774,520

$ 13,068
761,452

$ 774,520

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2019
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Totals Totals
Property Taxes $ $ $ $ 18,200
Landfill Siting 368,500 350,000 149,216 85,530
Investment Income 4,800 4,800 6,868 8,707
Local Road Improvement Aids 845,000 845,000 300,000 300,000

Total revenue 1,218,300 1,199,800 456,084 412,437

Expenditures:
Street Reconstruction Program - Current Year 1,300,000 1,487,936 753,088 954,503
Encumbrances (723,699) (904,130)

Total expenditures 1,300,000 1,487,936 29,389 50,373

Revenue over (under) expenditures (81,700) {288,136) 426,695 362,064

Fund balance, beginning of year 350,588 506,207 506,207 399,388

Fund balance, end of period $ 268,888 $ 218,071 $ 932,902 $ 761,452

7/13/2020 Findata Qtrrpt Street Improvement June 2020



City of Franklin
Capital Improvement Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash and investments $ 1,364,660 $ 3,473,365
Accrued receivables 951,949 8,949

Total Assets $ 2,316,609 $ 3,482,314

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ 20,932 $ 37,411
Contracts Payable 380,470
Deferred Inflow 943,000
Assigned fund balance 972,207 3,444,903

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2,316,609 $ 3,482,314

Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2019
Original Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Totals Totals
Other Grants $ 500,000 $ 1,443,000 $ 173,365 $
Landfill Siting 722,000 180,000 85,490 350,192
Transfers from Other Funds 600,000 600,000
Transfers from General Funds 500,000 500,000
Transfers from Impact Fees 621,500 692,900 49,079
Transfers from Connection Fees 1,120,000 1,120,000
Investment Income 25,000 25,000 14,005 60,599

Total revenue 4,088,500 4,560,900 321,939 410,791

Expenditures:
General Government 500,000 551,505 109,270 174,537
Public Safety 225,000 1,506,601 1,202,398 81,725
Public Works 1,150,000 1,343,809 392,219 1,057,572
Culture and Recreation 1,300,000 1,467,704 225,420 3,693
Sewer & Water 1,570,000 1,570,000 200,289
Contingency 175,000 171,070 27,170 10,183
Encumbrances (794,558) (1,038,450)

Total expenditures 4,920,000 6,610,689 1,362,208 289,260

Revenue over (under) expenditures (831,500) (2,049,789) (1,040,269) 121,531

Fund balance, beginning of year 1,012,833 2,012,476 2,012,476 3,323,372

Fund balance, end of period $ 181,333 $ (37,313) $ 972,207 $ 3,444,903

7/13/2020 Fmndata Qtrrpt Capital Improvement June 2020



Assets
Cash and investments
Impact fees recervable
Due From TIO 7

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable
Payable to Developers- Oversizing
Unearned Revenue - Other
Assigned fund balance

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

City of Franklin
Development Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020
$ 7,180,731

232,640
1,745,000

$ 9,158,371

2019
$ 6,619,854

$ 6,619,854

$ 11,673 $ 877
221,759 103,934
232,640

8,692,299 6,515,043

9,158,371 6,619,854

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Sewer Fees
Water Fees

Encumbrances

Total expenditures

Revenue over (under) expenditures

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fund balance, end of period $

2020
Original
Budget

804,000
48,000
15,000

679,000
22,000

133,500
207,700
224,000

2,133,200

120,000

2,253,200

25,000

205,082
42,937
71,923

134,000
453,942

621,500

621,500

250,000
1,025,000

2,375,442

(122,242)

8,663,277

8,541,035

2020
Amended
Budget

$ 804,000
48,000
15,000

679,000
22,000

133,500
207,700
224,000

2,133,200

120,000

2,253,200

33,552

205,082
42,937
71,923

134 000
453,942

71,400
646,785

718,185

250,000
1,368,130

2,823,809

(570,609)

8,833,459

$ 8,262,850

2020
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 143,284

60,435
2,200

151,050
5,299

20,456
37,715
40,358

460,797

105,878
2,686

569,361

29,184

199,855
39,863
64,249
93,982

397,949

74,364

74,364

554,760

(345,736)

710,521

(141,160)

8,833,459

$ 8,692,299

2019
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 169,737

16,230
3,740

249,013
18,656
30,360
56,167
47,511
591,414

111,700

703,114

15,253

133,800
39,333
18,000

132,286
323,419

25,285

25,285

226,590

(262,280)

328,267

374,847

6,140,196

$ 6,515,043

Revenue:
Impact Fee Parks $

Southwest Sewer Service Area
Administration
Water
Transportation
Fire Protection
Law Enforcement
Library

Total Impact Fees

Investment Income
lnterfund Interest Income
Total revenue

Expenditures:
Other Professional Services
Transfer to Debt Service
Law Enforcement
Fire
Transportation
Lubrary
Total Transfers to Debt Servce

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund
Transfer(s) Out
Park

Total Transfers to Capital Improveme

7/13/2020 L \41803 VOL1 Finance\Qtrrpt-MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS\2020\Monthly\Development Fund June 2020
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City of Franklin
Utility Development Fund

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets 2020 2019
Cash and Investments - Water $ 1,010,543 $ 766,959
Cash and Investments - Sewer 1,280,460 1,124,775
Special Assessment - Water Current 60,216 101,293
Special Assessment - Water Deferred 136,365 251,036
Special Assessment - Sewer Current 143,426 191,587
Reserve for Uncollectible (16,776) (16,776)

Total Assets $ 2,614,234 $ 2,418,874

Liabilities and Fund Balance
Accounts payable $ $
Unearned Revenue 323,231 527,140

Total Fund Balance 2,291,003 1,891,734

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance $ 2,614,234 $ 2,418,874

Comparative Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 2020 2019
Original Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date

Revenue: Budget Budget Actual Actual
Specal Assessments
Water $ 50,000 $ 6,846 $ 48,906 $ 63,551
Sewer 25,000 3,917 19,488 70,898

Connection Fees
Water
Sewer 16,402 23,700

Total Assessments &
Connection Fees 75,000 10,763 84,796 158,149

Special Assessment Interest 634
Investment Income 18,000 9,000 10,776 21,047
Total revenue 93,000 19,763 96,206 179,196

Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund
Water 620,000
Sewer 500,000

Total Transfers to Capital Improven 1,120,000

Revenue over (under) expenditures (1,027,000) 19,763 96,206 179,196

Fund balance, beginning of year 2,030,838 2,194,797 2,194,797 1,712,538

Fund balance, end of penod $ 1,003,838 $ 2,214,560 $ 2,291,003 $ 1,891,734

7/13/2020 Fmndata Qtrrpt Utility Development June 2020



City of Franklin
Sanitary SewerFund

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures,
and Changes in Net Assets

Forthe Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2020 Current Prior
Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Totals Totals

Operating Revenue
Residential $ 2,099,400 $ 1,048,576 $ 1,078,890 $ 1,031,577
Commercial 588,000 281,048 289,344 281,992
Industrial 429,000 215,555 235,409 212,253
Public Authority 172,000 83,430 81,492 82,992
Penalties/Other 37,000 11,346 5,744 10,535
Mult Family 511,200 255,600 267,234 248,078
Miscellaneous Revenue 5,250

Total Operating Revenue 3,836,600 1,895,555 1,958,113 1,872,677

Operating Expenditures
Salaries and benefits $ 713,362 $ 269,181 $ 283,693 $ 264,906
Contractual services 148,175 95,831 110,758 112,061
Supplies 84,150 42,075 23,837 26,726
Facility charges 63,100 32,790 23,845 21,897
Shared meter costs 7,000 3,500
Sewer service - MMSD 2,497,000 1,248,500 1,266,937 1,199,625
Other operating costs 27,500 14,767 8,814 9,505
Allocated expenses 126,050 63,025 66,930 64,427
Sewer improvements 195,367 90,000 90,301 76,931
Depreciation 151,600 75,800 75,600 90,000
Encumbrances (3,684) (4,205)

Total operating expenditures 4,013,304 1,935,469 1,947,031 1,861,873

Operating Income (Loss) (176,704) (39,914) 11,082 10,804

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenditures)
Miscellaneous income {3,500) (1,750) 795 1,080
Property sale 2,500
Investment income 425,800 212,900 224,028 251,316
Interest expense (400,800) (200,400) (216,106) (231,428)
Caprtal expenditures (87,424) (10,525) (49,238) (27,538)
Encumbrances 49,238 27,538

Total non-operating revenue (expenditures) (63,424) 225 8,717 20,968

Income (Loss) before Capital Contributions (240,128) (39,689) 19,799 31,772

Retained Earnings- Beginning 1,725,771 1,725,771 1,725,771 1,578,345
Transfer (to) from Invested in Capital Assets 116,900 58,450 60,962 (24,945)
Retained Earnings- Ending 1,602,543 1,744,532 1,806,532 1,585,172

Capital Contributions 1,000,000 500,000
Depreciation - CIAC (2,039,000) (1,019,500) (1,019,520) (1,009,050)
Transfer (to) from Retained Earnings (116,900) (58,450) (60,962) 24,945

Change mn Net Investment in Capital Assets (1,155,900) (577,950) (1,080,482) (984,105)

Net Investment mn Capital Assets-Beginning 62,463,346 62,463,346 62,463,346 61,590,890

Net Investment in Capital Assets-Ending 61,307,446 61,885,396 61,382,864 60,606,785

Total net assets $ 62,909,989 $63,629,928 $ 63,189,396 $ 62,191,957

7/14/2020 Fmdata Qtrrpt Sewer 2nd Quarter 2020



City of Franklin
Sanitary Sewer Fund

Statement ofCash Flows
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating mncome to
net cash provided by operating actrvrt ies

Deprecation
allocated from water utility

(Increase) decrease in assets·
Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in habthties
Accounts payable

Total Adjustments

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

$ 11,082 $ 10,804

75,600 90,000

(109,258) (97,401)
118,953 108,886

2,291

(24,357) 29,904

60,938 133,680

$ 72,020 $ 144,484

Cash Flows From Capital & Related Financing Activities
Due from MMSD & Other Governments

Due to general fund
Notes payable
Acquisntion of capital assets
Investment mn deferred assets/labiltt1es

Net Cash Provided (Used) in Capital
and Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest and other mcome
Interest exepense

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of period

7/14/2020

1,275,272 1,244,629

(1,275,272) (1,244,629)
(14,638) (114,945)

(14,638) (114,945)

224,823 252,396
(216,106) (231,428)

66,099 50,507

1,529,881 1,383,225

$ 1,595,980 $ 1,433,732

Frndata Qtrrpt Sewer 2nd Quarter 2020



City of Franklin
Sanitary Sewer Fund

Comparative Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets
Current assets

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable
Miscellaneous receivable

Total current assets

Non current assets·
Due from MMSD

Sanitary Sewer plant in service
Land
Buildings and improvements
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress

Less accumulated deprecation

Net sanitary sewer plant in service

Deferred assets
Penson assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Current liabilities'

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to General Fund - non-interest bearng

Total current hab1lities

Non current lablittes
Accrued compensated absences
Pension liability (GASB 68)
General Obligation Notes payable - CWF

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows
Pension liabilities

Net Assets
Invested m capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted balances - LT receivable
Retained earnings

Total net assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

7/14/2020

2020 2019

$ 1,595,980 $ 1,433,732
1,088,638 1,047,180

12,139 6,980
2,696,757 2,487,892

16,280,068 17,555,340

725,594 725,594
3,308,050 3,308,050
81,653,509 78,754,451
1,223,803 1,204,359

95,510 95,510
87,006,466 84,087,964
(25,623,602) (23,481,179)

61,382,864 60,606,785

373,360 89,558

$ 80,733,049 $ 80,739,575

$ 637,708 $ 650,480
37,255 29,109
72,035 77,143

746,998 756,732

75,900 75,360
328,016 57,415

16,280,069 17,555,341

17,430,983 18,444,848

112,670 102,770

45,102,796 43,051,445
16,280,068 17,555,340
1,806,532 1,585,172

63,189,396 62,191,957

$ 80,733,049 $ 80,739,575

Findata Qtrrpt Sewer 2nd Quarter 2020



Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the six months ending June 30, 2020 and 2019

Water Connection Fee
Prior to May 31, 2002, the City collected a water connection fee on new construction and
connections to existing properties, to be used to fund water main construction projects.
The water connection fees on hand on June 30, 2020 total$ 1,010,544.

Water Impact Fee
Since May 31, 2002 a water impact fee on residential and commercial construction replaced
the water connection fee. Water Impact Fees collected in 2020 total $151,050.
Water Impact fees on hand at June 30, 2020 total$ 2,680,247.

7/16/2020 Findata H20 2nd Quarter 2020 xlsx Notes



7/15/2020

Franklin Municipal Water Utility
StatementofRevenue, Expenditures

and Changes in NetAssets
For the six months ending June 30, 2020 and 2019

Amended Year to Date Current Prior
AccountDescription Budget Budget Year to Date Year to Date

Operating Revenue
Metered Sales-Residential $ 3,064,300 1,388,428 $ 1,467,105 $ 1,331,953
Metered Sales-Commercial 704,900 322,568 300,875 309,748
Metered Sales-Industrial 491,900 240,982 226,847 221,716
Other Sales to Public Authority 263,600 127,664 121,234 130,450
Metered Sales-Multifamily 766,700 383,350 375,422 365,157
Metered Sales-Irrigation 150,500 75,250 33,595 25,991

Total Metered Sales 5,441,900 2,538,242 2,525,078 2,385,015
Unmetered Sales 7,500 1,529 25,131 4,794
Private Fire Protection 125,000 62,304 63,528 54,059
Public Fire Protection 541,000 273,987 273,817 271,830
Forfeited Discount 54,000 16,178 8,207 15,251

Total Operating Revenue $ 6,169,400 $ 2,892,240 $ 2,895,761 $ 2,730,949
Operating Expenditures
Operation and maintenance expense

Source ofSupply 3,044,120 1,513,801 1,516,237 1,353,026

Pumping 156,250 75,445 76,179 80,617

Water Treatment 18,300 8,114 2,881 5,290

Transmission & Distribution 443,200 192,424 139,681 132,272

Customer Accounts 52,400 25,275 30,921 28,547

Administrative and general 727,273 358,792 189,648 181,377

Total Operation and Maintenance
Expenditures 4,441,543 2,173,851 1,955,547 1,781,129

Depreciation 421,900 197,888 210,900 264,600
Taxes-Property Tax Equivalent 1,075,000 565,131 537,600 525,000
Amortization 21,030
GASBEmployeeBenefitCosts 15,000 7,500
Loss on Abandoned Property 100,000
Taxes-FICA 29,082 14,541 12,694 11,392

Total Operating Expenditures 2 6,082,525 2,958,911 2,716,741 2,603,151

Operating Income $ 86,875 $ (66,671) $ 179,020 $ 127,798

Non-Operating Revenue (Expenditures)
Interest Income 35,000 17,500 21,133 42,547
Misc Revenue 2,000 690
Interest on LTD (31,088) (15,544) (15,544) (16,094)
Bond/Note Issuance Cost
WaterPropertyRent 55,000 28,442 33,482 24,993
OtherWater Revenue 2,000 886 8,690 9,025
Interest on LTD
Interest-Debt to Municipality (3,080) (1,221) (1,540) (1,746)

Total non-operating revenue 59,832 30,753 46,221 58,725

Income before capital contributions $ 146,707 $ (35,918) $ 225,241 $ 186,523

Retained earings - beginning 2,805,630 2,805,630 2,805,630 3,294,662
Transfer (to) from invested in capital assets 278,100 139,050 186,619 (445,840)
Retained earnings - ending $ 3,230,437 $ 2,908,762 $ 3,217,490 $ 3,035,345

Capital contributions 1,600,000
Deprecation - CIAC (849,000) (424,500) (424,500) (420,750)
Transfer (to) from retained earnings (278,100) (139,050) (186,619) 445,840
Change in net investment 6,933,773 5,393,024 (611,119) 25,090

Net investment in capital assets - beginning 47,409,195 47,409,195 47,409,195 42,367,393

Net investmentin capital assets - ending $ 54,342,968 $ 52,802,219 $46,798,076 $42,392,483

Total net assets $57,573,405 $ 55,710,981 $50,015,566 $45,427,828

Findata H20 2nd Quarter 2020 Income statement



Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Comparative Balance Sheet

June 30, 2020 & 2019

Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Total current assets

Utility plant in service:
Land
Buildings and improvements
Construction in Progress
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment

Less accumulated depreciation

Net utility plant in service

Deferred Assets:
Pension Assets
Deferred Costs

Total deferred assets

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to City of Franklin
Advance from municipality
Pension liability
Compensated absences reserve
Bond Payable

Deferred Liabilities:
Pension & OPES Liabilities

Total liabilities

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Retained earnings

Total net assets

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

7/15/2020

2020 2019

$ 2,483,432 $ 2,606,876
1,655,998 1,501,417
4,139,430 4,108,293

162,885 162,885
3,394,166 3,394,166
1,066,083 597,702

60,725,142 55,613,608
4,623,438 4,588,062

69,971,714 64,356,423
22,059,026 20,924,322

47,912,688 43,432,101

430,264 102,915
21,029

430,264 123,944

$ 52,482,382 $ 47,664,338

$ 16,584 $ 156,438
792,252 677,585

139
123,200 139,700
385,222 66,480
75,900 75,360

951,682 1,005,647
2,344,840 2,121,349

121,976 115,161
2,466,816 2,236,510

46,798,076 42,392,483
3,217,490 3,035,345

50,015,566 45,427,828

$ 52,482,382 $ 47,664,338

Fmndata H20 2nd Quarter 2020 Statements



Franklin Municipal Water Utility
Comparative Statement of Cash Flows

For the six months ending June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation & Amortization
(Increase) decrease in assets:

Accounts receivable
Taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses

Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Due to other funds

Total Adjustments
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities

$ 179,020

210,900

(260,537)
161,985

(926,794)
780,000

(34,446)
144,574

$ 127,798

285,630

(101,565)
173,499
2,291

(604,221)
665,700

139

421,473
549,271

Cash Flows From Capital & Related Financing Activities
Acquisition of capital assets
Interest paid on long term debt
Principal on long term debt

Net Cash Provided (Used) in Capital
and Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Interest, property rental & other income

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of period

(79,786)
(15,544)
(55,000)

(150,330)

63,305

57,549

2,425,883

(679,288)
(16,094)
(55,000)

(750,382)

76,565

(124,546)

2,731,422

$ 2,606,876$ 2,483,432

7/15/2020 Findata H20 2nd Quarter 2020 Statements



City of Franklin
Self Insurance Fund - Actives

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities and Net Assets
Accounts payable
Claims payable
Unrestricted net assets

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance

2020 2019
$ 3,295,754 $ 2,200,412

324 309
$ 3,296,078 $ 2,200,721

$ 74,907 $ 14,384
175,000 290,700

3,046,171 1,895,637
$ 3,296,078 $ 2,200,721

City of Franklin Self Insurance Fund - Actives
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Revenue
Medical Premiums-City
Medical Premiums-Employee
Other - Invest Income, Rebates
Medical Revenue

Dental Premiums-City
Dental Premiums-Retirees
Dental Premiums-Employee
Dental Revenue

Total Revenue

Expenditures:
Medical
Medical clamms
Prescription drug claims
Refunds-Stop Loss Coverage
Total Claims

Medcal Clamm Fees
Stop Loss Premiums
Other - Miscellaneous
HSA Contributions
Vitality Rewards
Transfer to Other Funds
Total Medical Costs

Dental
Active Employees & COBRA
Retiree

Total Dental Costs

2020
Original
Budget

$ 2,648,046
538,440
165,000

3,351,486
112,000

60,000
172,000

3,523,486

2020
Year-to-Date

Budget
$ 1,327,835

269,439
82,500

1,679,774
56,233

30,097
86,330

1,766,104

2020
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 1,224,028

250,093
130,719

1,604,840
59,811
1,944

29,135
90,890

1,695,730

2019
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 1,217,154

260,853
69,653

1,547,660
56,018
1,854

28,518
86,390

1,634,050

2,414,478 1,089,122 453,362 842,389
86,891 104,654
(5,394) 22

2,414,478 1,089,122 534,859 947,065
105,677 55,454 76,849 91,863
666,331 338,184 259,245 275,614
112,477 35,548 11,681 4,634
237,000 118,500 180,281
500,000 250,000

94,375
4,035,963 1,886,808 1,062,915 1,413,551

193,000 93,789 72,811 82,771
4,900 2,907 2,354 2,259

197,900 96,696 75,165 85,030

Claims contingency

Total Expenditures 4,233,863 1,983,504 1,138,080 1,498,581

Revenue over (under) expenditures (710,377) $ (217,400) 557,650 135,469
Net assets, beginning of year 2,325,068 2,488,521 1,760,168

Net assets, end of penod $ 1,614,691 $ 3,046,171 $ 1,895,637

7/13/2020 Fimndata Qtrrpt Self Insurance June 2020



City of Franklin
City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust

Balance Sheet
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Assets
Cash and investments $
Investments held in trust - Fixed Inc
Investments held in trust - Equities
Accounts receivable

Total Assets $

Liabilities and NetAssets
Accounts payable $ 15,277 $ 2,227
Claims payable 10,000 131,100
Net assets held in trust for post emp6,397031 6,061,621

Total Liabities and Fund Balance $ 6,422,308 3,19_

City of Franklin Post Employment Benefits Trust
Statement of Revenue, Expenses and Fund Balance
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
152,524 $ 127,026

2,571,504 2,168,756
3,674,373 3,866,724

23,907 32,442
6,422,308 $ 6,194,948r-:

Revenue
ARC Medical Charges - City
Medical Charges - Retirees
Implicit Rate Subsidy

Medical Revenue

Expenditures:
Retirees-Medical
Medical claims
Prescription drug claims
Refunds-Stop Loss Coverage
Total Claims-Retirees

Medical Claim Fees
Stop Loss Premiums
Miscellaneous Expense
ACA Fees
Total Medical Costs-Retirees

2020
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 132,227

102,448

234,675

67,788
51,626

119,414
11,249
35,063
(195)
127

165,658

2019
Year-to-Date

Actual
$ 139,764

115,116

254,880

67,659
60,911
(1,393)

127,177
31,471
40,193

345
172

199,358

Revenue over (under) expenditures

Annual Required Contribution-Net
Other - Investment Income, etc.
Total Revenues

Net Revenues (Expenditures)

Net assets, beginning of year

Net assets, end of period $

69,017

65,161
(275,907)
(210,746)

(141,729)

6,538,760

6,397,031 $

55,522

80,346
696,349
776,695

832,217

5,229,404

6,061,621

7/15/2020 Findata Qtrrpt Retiree Health Fund June 2020



City of Franklin
Park Commission

Statement of Revenue and Expenses
For the Six months ended June 30, 2020

2020 2020 Current 2019
Amended Year-to-Date Year-to-Date Year-to-Date
Budget Budget Totals Totals

General Fund Operating Revenue:
Park & Feld Reservation $ 18,000 $ 13,426 $ 5,329 $ 15,017

General Fund Operating Expenses:
Personal Services $ 119,998 $ 59,999 $ 79,941 $ 53,256
Park Maintenance 50,000 21,565 23,874 10,609
Uniforms 350 6
Allocated insurance 2,450
Mileage 1,500 394 74 234
Utilities 14,600 6,707 4,145 3,784
Building maintenance

Total Operating Fund Expenses $ 186,448 $ 88,671 $ 108,034 $ 70,333

Capital Outlay Fund Expenses:
Landscaping-Park/Tree Mamnt $ $ $ $ 2,866
Building Improvements 65,000 32,500
Park Equipment & Supplies 11,000 4,127

Total Capital Outlay Expenditures $ 76,000 $ 36,627 $ $ 2,866

Development Fund Revenue:
Impact Fee-Parks & Recreation $ 804,000 $ 367,001 $ 143,284 $ 169,737

Development Fund Expenses:
Remmb to Developers & Others $ 25,285 $ 12,643 $ 25,285 $
Transfer to Capital Improvement Fund 621,500 64,826 49,079

Total Capital Improvement Expenditures 646,785 77,469 74,364

Capital Improvement Fund Expenses:
General Park Development $ 828,000 $ 414,000 $ 32,439 $
Kayla's Playground - Franklin Woods 250,000 125,000
Improvements - Ken Windl Park 22,618 11,309 12,666
Pleasant View Park - Pavlon 132,097 66,049 140,426 3,693
Pleasant View Park - Park Equipment 19,989 9,994 19,989
Pleasant View Park - Master Plan Update 150,000 75,000 19,900
Cascade Park Trail Extension 65,000 32,500

Total Caprtal Improvement Expenditures 1,467,704 733,852 225,420 3,693

Less Impact Fees Transfer 621,500 64,826 49,079

Net Expenditures (after Impact Fee contribution) $ 846,204 $ 669,026 $ 176,341 $ 3,693

7/14/2020 Qtrrpt PARKS 2nd Quarter 2020



COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS FOR CITYOF FRANKLIN
Period Ending 06/30/2020

LIBRARY TOURISM HEALTH CIVIC
RESTRICTED COMMISSION FIRE DEPT STMARTINS DEPT GRANT OTHER DONATIONS CELEBRATIONS

GL Number__...-----------------­ FUND FUND GRANT FUND FAIR FUND FUND GRANTS FUND _..----FUND....----. TOTAL _

REVENUES
REAL ESTATE TAXES
TAXES (961) (961)
INTERGOVERNMENTAL 65 509 65,509
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 2426 2426
MISCELLANEOUS REVENUE 20,031 690 9 240 29 961
INVESTMENT EARNINGS 910 2,098 3,008
Total Revenues 23 367 1,137 66,199 9 240 99,942

EXPENDITURES
PERSONAL SERVICES 26,334 26 334
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 4,375 4,375
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES 5 902 15,150 3 400 24,452
SUPPLIES 17058 25 13,336 3 242 1 512 35,172
SERVICES & CHARGES 3,503 2076 11 733 2,640 19,952
FACILITYCHARGES 416 416
CLAIMS CONTRIB AND AWARDS 401 401
DEBT SERVICE
INTEREST
CONTINGENCY
Total Expenditures 27 281 2,100 70,928 3 242 7 552 111 103

Excess (deficiency) of
Revenues vs Expenditures (3 914) (963) (4,729) 5 998 (7 552) (11,160)

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
FUND TRANSFERS

OTHER FINANCING USES
CAPITAL OUTLAY 8,007 149 8 156

Net Change in Fund Balance (11,921) (963) (4 729) 5 849 (7,552) (19 316)

Fund Balance - Beginning 147,445 469 951 21,621 3,636 171,625 5,315 161,342 77,316 1,058,251
Fund Balance - Ending 135,524 468,988 21,621 3,636 166,896 5,315 167,191 69,764 1,038,935

1412020 Qrprt Minor Funds 2Q20



APPROVAL
4

Reports &
Recommendations

COMMON COUNCIL

DEVELOPMENT OF A FRANKLIN POLICYTO ELIMINATE
PRIVATE PROPERTY INFLOW AND INFILTRATION (PPII)

FROM THE SANITARY SEWER

MTG.DATE
August 4, 2020

ITEM NO.

Ga0
BACKGROUND
Franklin annually accumulates $200,000 - $250,000 with Milwaukee Metropolitan Sewerage
District (MMSD) to spend on private property inflow and infiltration (PPII) issues. The current
balance is over $1.1 million. This fund has paid for 4 projects in the Rawson Homes area and a
current investigation project in the tributary area of St. Martins Lift Station.

ANALYSIS
Under previous employment, Staff developed a PPII policy for Greencastle, Indiana that was
highly effective, inexpensive to implement, and accommodating to residents. Recently, MMSD
has revised policies for use of this fund that could enable Franklin to implement a policy similar
to Greencastle.

Implementing a Greencastle-type policy would take special MMSD permission. Staff would like
to explain the Greencastle policy to Common Council and how it could be adapted to Franklin.
Common Council can provide comments that Staff can incorporate in a request to MMSD, if
negotiations with MMSD are to continue.

OPTIONS
Not applicable at this time.

FISCAL NOTE
Not applicable at this time.

RECOMMENDATION
Direct Staff to work with MMSD to develop a Franklin policy to eliminate Private Property Inflow
and Infiltration (PPII) from the sanitary sewer.

Engineering Department: GEM
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City ofGreencastle
City Hall

One North Locust Street
P.O. Box 607

Greencastle, Indiana 46135

March 19, 2003

As many of you know, Greencastle bas experienced many problems with our old, broken,
and undersized sanitary sewer system. To comply with State and Federal mandates, our
sewage utility customers had to fund a major construction project that was painful for
everybody. We don't like to raise sewer rates, and we want to do everything possible to
avoid more rate increases like we have experienced the past few years.

Now that we have a new treatment plant, we want to guard its capacity and push off any
expansion for at least 20 to 30 years. Every gallon of clear water that we can eliminate
from the collection system means we will have one more gallon for new residents and
business that Greencastle needs in order to stay a special place to live and work.

We hope th.is policy book is helpful to the homeowner as well as the experienced
plumber. Not only do we outline the procedures of this policy, we made an effort to
educate the reader as to why these issues are serious problems and need to be fixed.

This is our first year to implement this program, please be patient as we work out the
details. If you have any suggestions for improving this program, please let us know! We
will revisit this policy within a year and revise, if necessary. Doing nothing is not an
option. Our sewage customers insist that we are good stewards of our facilities.

Sincerely,
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INTRODUCTION

i

d
t, ·

4

/ .

, 1',/ r'I L --INFLOW is rainwater that may enter the sanitary sewer
system directly. Inflow may also be clear water from
mechanical and air conditioning units such as condensation I
and cooling water. Evidence of inflow sources exhibit d
increased sewage flow rates immediately during a stonn
event and ending quickly after the stonn event. General examples of inflow sources are
roof drains, street storm systems, and sump pumps that pump floor drains directly to the
sanitary sewer collection system.

INFILTRATION is rainwater, groundwater, or springs that may enter the sanitary sewer
collection system after filtering tlu·ough the ground. Evidence of
groundwater infiltration sources exhibit a gradual increase of sewage
flow rates during a storm event and continuing several days after a
storm event, if it ever stops. General examples of infiltration sources
are defects in sewage pipes, sewage manhole defects, building
foundation drains, and sump pumps that allow groundwater to enter
the sanitary sewer collection system.

Like most municipalities, Greencastle has a combination of clear water INFLOW AND
INFILTRATION (I/I) problems. Evidence of combined I/I is noticed at the Greencastle
wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) where the sewage flow rate increases immediately
during a storm event and continues at elevated conditions for several days. When flow
conditions return to normal after a stonn event, much of the sewage is from infiltration
sources.

The City of Greencastle is committed to reducing the
amount of clear water that enters the sanitary sewer
collection system. The Greencastle Board of Public Works
and Safety has written this Policy Document to describe the
programs and policies of the City to educate the property
owners of their role and responsibility in eliminating clear
water inflow and infiltration (I/I).

Elevated flows in the collection system can exceed the sewer
main's capacity to get the sewage to the WWTP. When the
sewer pipe capacities are exceeded, sewage may overflow at
locations such as manholes, lift stations, and basements. These
overflows and bypasses allow untreated sewage to bypass
treatment, pollute the environment, and have the potential of
human contact.

During dry weather conditions, a large percentage of the
sewage is groundwater infiltration. That "clean" sewage must
still be transported and treated at the WWTP. Even if all of the
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sewage with I/I can reach the WWTP, treating the increased volumes ofsewage is an
operational problem. Once clear water is mixed with domestic sewage, it must all be
treated.

Over the years, the City and the sewage customers have
spent a lot ofmoney to increase capacity in the collection
and treatment systems. Many of these expenditures were
required by federal and state agencies because of the
excessive VI problems.

It costs the City ofGreencastle utility customers
approximately $3.47 to treat 1,000 gallons of sewage at
the WWTP

= : III I I I

I - I I
I -

To comply with regulations, $12.3 million was spent on
construction projects to build a large sewer main, pumping station, and new treatment
facility. These facilities were designed to handle the current sewage flows with some
community growth.

Removing 1/1...
• Will help eliminate pollution to the environment.
• Will help eliminate human contact with raw sewage.
• Will help the City comply with State and Federal regulations.
• Will add capacity to the sanitary sewage collection and treatment systems.
• Will save sewage utility customers money.

Many municipalities across Indiana and the United States have been forced to eliminate
I/I problems with drastic measures that are burdensome and expensive for the cities and
for the sewage customers. To avoid future situations that are burdensome and expensive
to the Greencastle sewage customers, The City ofGreencastle is committed to reduce I/I
as outlined in this Policy Document.

The Board ofPublic Works and Safety will occasionally update this Policy Document, as
needed. To obtain a current version of this document, contact the Greencastle Utility
Department at City Hall, or visit the website www.gogreencastle.com/City/sanitary.

City of Greencastle Board of Public Works and Safety
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DOWNSPOUTS & CLEANOUTS

A common, inexpensive construction practice in the past was to
connect downspouts to the sanitary sewer system. Also, open
cleanouts have eliminated many backyard puddles. In locations where
storm sewers were unavailable, this was an easy way to dispose of
rainwater without having to construct a storm sewer. Often offending
downspouts are not physically connected to the sanitary sewer system
but are discharged to a location that is drained by a missing or
defective cleanout cap.

Downspouts, or roof leaders, connected to the sanitary sewer system
can be a huge source of clear water inflow. Roofs do not absorb water
like soils and turfs; therefore almost 100% of rainwater that falls on a
rooftop will leave the rooftop.

- Roof
\ '

Since Greencastle receives an average yearly rainfall of 34- inches, a residential house
with 2,000 square feet of rooftop can annually contribute over 42,000 gallons of clear
water to the sewage systems each year This equates to a yearly cost of approximately
$150 to treat rain water.
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Cleanouts are locations that provide access to the sewer lateral so that plugged lines may
be located and serviced without having to dig up the yard or make a mess indoors.
Cleanouts are highly recommended, and are required for new construction.
Unfortunately, the caps that cover tbe cleanouts are sometimes missing or are damaged so
that rainwater may still directly enter the lateral and the sanitary sewer system.
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HOW CAN THEY BE FIXED?
Fortunately, offending downspouts and cleanouts are one of the easiest and least
expensive Inflow sources to eliminate This is usually accomplished by capping the
opening to the sanitary sewer system.

If the opening to the sewer system is a needed lateral cleanout,
there are inexpensive manufactured PVC fittings available for this
purpose. These fittings allow access to the lateral for inspection or
maintenance purposes. When not needed for inspection or
maintenance purposes, the cleanout cap shall be closed in a
watertight position. Typically, the cap uses a screw method to
achieve this watertight connection.

Often, there may be a PVC cleanout that was installed properly but removed or
damaged at some time. The cleanout caps should be inspected to see that there are no
cracks or defects that could allow surface water to enter into the lateral.

If the opening to the sewer system is not needed as a future access to the building lateral,
the connection is typically closed with glue-on PVC fittings for PVC pipe openings. For
non-PVC materials, other permanent methods may be used such as filling the hole with
concrete, or digging around the opening and filling with concrete. Moveable and
biodegradable materials such as wood and bricks are not acceptable.

CAUTIONS
If a missing or damaged cleanout cap is replaced on an open connection to the lateral, a
ponding or flooding condition may occur. Some re-grading of the ground may be
required to redirect water away from the cleanout location.

In extreme cases, a new storm drain may need to be installed to
transport the ponding water to an acceptable location. Any storm
water discharge shall not cause adverse damages to a neighboring
property.

There are laws that address drainage disputes between private
properties. To deter lawsuits and avoid liability, the property owner
should redirect drainage to a natural drainage location or defined
storm sewer system. If a property owner needs assistance in locating
an available storm sewer system, he should contact the City Engineer.
If a property owner needs assistance in designing an adequate storm
sewer system, he should hire a licensed professional engineer

Roof

Gutter

Roof
Leader

Ground
Level

HOW CAN THEY BE INSPECTED?
The City may use a variety of methods to locate offending downspouts and cleanouts.
The most common methods are smoke testing and dye testing. City personnel have the
right to enter private yards to verify that there are no illegal stormwater connections to
the sanitary sewer system.
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CERTIFTCATlON
Residential roof drains and cleanouts are two items required to be
certified as "N/A" or "Sufficient" prior to issuance of a water account.

Commercial roof drains and cleanouts must be certified as "N/A" or
"Sufficient" prior to July 2005.

A certification of "N/A" indicates that there are no roof drains or
cleanouts on the property.

"Sufficient" indicates that there are roof drains and/or cleanouts on the
property and that there is no potential for clear water discharges to the sanitary sewer
system.

WAIVERS?
No waivers shall be granted by the City to allow any 1/I to enter the sanitary sewer
system from downspouts, open cleanouts, or defective cleanouts. These items can be
fixed for as little as the cost of a PVC cleanout cap.

0
0

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS AND SAFETY POSITION
All downspouts shall be disconnected from the sanitary sewer system. All cleanouts or
other openings shall be closed to prevent I/I from entering the sanitary sewer system.

CITY ORDINANCES
The City Ordinances specify procedures for fines and penalties if a property owner is
discovered to have a roof drain, defective cleanout cap, missing cleanout cap, or other
open connection to the sanitary sewer system.
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SUMP PUMPS & GRINDER PUMPS

Many homes have sump pumps located in crawl spaces and
basement areas. Greencastle is blessed with an abundance
of natural springs and a high groundwater table that require
the installation of sump pumps for certain locations. If it
weren't for sump pumps to pump clear water from various
locations, many locations would experience damage to
furnaces, water heaters, electrical panels, etc. and some
locations would develop health concerns such as mold,
fungus, and mildew.

Sump pumps are different than grinder pumps. Grinder
pumps, or Ejector Pumps, are intended for the discharge of
domestic sewage from low spots to higher sewage pipes. Grinder pumps clop or shred
solids so that the sewage may pump through small diameter pipes. Unfortunately, some
grinder pumps pump domestic sewage, as well as clear water I/I to the sanitary sewer
system.

Ground Level

[}tII Sump Pump
Discharge Line

Basement Wall

The City does not intend to eliminate the use of sump
pumps or grinder pumps. We only wish to prevent the
sump pump discharges from entering the sanitary sewer
system. ln the past, many builders and homeowners found
the sanitary sewer a convenient location to discharge the
sump pump clear water.

Many sump pumps can easily discharge 20 gallons per
minute. During wet conditions, those same sump pumps may
operate almost continuously and could potentially discharge
28,800 gallons per clay of clear water I/1 into the sanitary

sewer system. This equates to a daily cost of $99.94 to treat the groundwater.

During moderately-damp conditions when sump pumps do not run continuously, it still
does not take very many sump pumps to overload the capacity of the sanitary sewer
mamns.
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HOW CAN SUMP PUMPS BE FIXED?
Fixing the offending Sump Pumps can be difficult. The reason why the sump pumps
were connected the way they were is probably because other alternatives were more
costly when they were installed.

@] The first question tll.:! property owner needs to answer is "ls the sump pump
necessary?" Some sump pumps were installed as a precaution against a fear
that was nonexistent. Some sump pumps are protecting areas against flooding

that would not be damaged or impaired if the area were to flood.



If the sump pump is not necessary and the property owner decides to disconnect it, then
the sump pump and corresponding piping, valves, electrical outlets, etc. needs to be
removed such that reconnection is difficult.

@] If it is necessary to keep the sump pump for various reasons, then new valves,
pipes, fittings, etc, may need to be installed to redirect the sump. pump
discharge to a location where it will not enter into the sanitary sewer system.

These permissible locations may be a natural drainage location or defined storm sewer
system. Also, you might discuss with the City Engineer or Street Commissioner if the
curb and gutter portion of the street is an acceptable discharge location.

If the sump pump discharge is redirected, then all of the new valves, pipes, fittings, etc,
need to be installed so that reversal of the discharge back to the sanitary sewer is
difficult.

c] Often it is difficult to tell if a sump pump discharges to the
sanitary or to the storm sewer systems. ln those cases, liquid
dye should be used to mix with water and have the sump pump

operate. All of the adjacent storm and sanitary sewers should be
inspected to discover where the dyed water appears. No dye from sump
pumps should be found in the sanitary sewer system.

CAUTION
Again, the property owner needs to be cautioned that there are laws that
address drainage disputes between private properties. To deter lawsuits
and avoid liability, the property owner should redirect drainage to a natural drainage
location or defined storm sewer system. If a property owner needs assistance in locating
an available stonn sewer system, he should contact the City Engineer. If a property
owner needs assistance in designing an adequate storm sewer system, be should hire a
licensed professional engineer.

HOW CAN GRINDER PUMPS BE FIXED?
fixing the offending Grinder Pumps is often more difficult than fixing sump pumps.

@] Similar to the sump pump issue, the first question the property owner needs to
answer is "Does the grinder pump need to accept flows from the clear water
sources?" Bringing a grinder pump into compliance may' be as easy as

permanently plugging or redirecting an outside floor drain. If all clear water sources
can be eliminated from draining to the grinder pump, the grinder pump may continue to
discharge domestic waste into the sanitary sewer system.

@] If clear water cannot be easily eliminated from the grinder pump, extensive
indoor plumbing may be necessary. The only option may be that a sump
pump is needed for the clear water sources.
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E] Like the sump pumps, it may be necessary to pump liquid dye through the
grinder pump to see where it discharges. Pumping domestic waste to a storm
sewer system is direct pollution of the environment and the domestic sewage

must be redirected to the sanitary sewer.

CAUTIONS
When working with pumping systems (both sump and grinder), one should examine the
pumping characteristics of the pump. As a discharge pipe increases in length,
decreases in diameter, or increases in vertical lift, the pump will not pump as quickly and
may not operate at all. This problem may result in a situation that will cause flooding.
Only a person familiar with the pump characteristics should make a calculated decision
about altering pump discharge.

lt is highly recommended, and sometimes necessary for pumps to be installed with a
check valve. Check valves prevent water from draining to the pump from the discharge
line.

Also remember that pumps are electrical machines that may require the
involvement of a qualified electrician

INSPECTIONS
The only accurate way to inspect sump pump and grinder pump conformance is by using
liquid dye. Smoke testing is ineffective because of check valves or other pipes that have
trapped water.

DO NOT ATTEMPT TO REMOVE MANHOLE LIDS
OR ENTER A SEWER MANHOLE WITHOUT CITY
ASSISTANCE. Manholes are confined spaces with
deadly gasses. Please contact the Sewer Department for
assistance when working around the sanitary sewer
collection system.

CERTIFICATIONS
Sump Pumps and Grinder Pumps may be certified as
"NIA" on the Certification Form if there are no sump
pumps or grinder pumps present.

They may be certified as "Sufficient" if the pumps exist and do not contribute clear
water to the sanitary sewer system, and do not discharge domestic sewage to places other
than the sanitary sewer system. Also, all "dirty" water from clothes washers, dish sinks,
etc, must be discharged to a sanitary sewer.

City of Greencastle Board of Public Works and Safety
Policy Document to Reduce I/I from the Sanitary Sewer Systems

page 11 of 28
City ofGreencastle, IN -March 2003



WAIVERS
lf a sump or grinder pump does exist, and it is not practical to bring the pump system(s)
into compliance, then it should be certified as "Needs Waiver" and written
documentation must be supplied for a City consideration of a waiver.

The City will consider a waiver if there is not an appropriate place to discharge clear
water. Any waiver will stipulate that the property owner will connect to an appropriate
storm sewer system, when such a system is constructed. This waiver will also be signed
by the property owner, notarized, and recorded at the Putnam County Courthouse.

No waivers will be considered for new construction

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS AND
SAFETY POSITION
Property Owners who want to appeal the
City's initial denial of a waiver must
appear before the Board of Public Works
and Safety. The Board will consider the
discharge locations and other
considerations that would be considered
detrimental to the neighborhood.

ClTY ORDINANCES
The City Ordinances specify procedures for fines and penalties if a property owner is
discovered to have a sump pump or grinder pump discharging clear water into the
sanitary sewer system.
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LATERALS

Laterals are typically 4 or 6-inch diameter sewer
pipes that transport the domestic sewage from the
building to the sewer main. In Greencastle, the
Property Owner is responsible for the lateral to the
point of, and including the connection to the sewer
mam.

In most circumstances, these laterals were installed
in an acceptable manner, with state of the art
materials. Over time, the lateral pipe often cracks,
disintegrates, or separates at joints to allow
groundwater to infiltrate into the sanitary sewer
system. If the lateral is in the vicinity of a spring,
the lateral may contribute a significant amount of
f/1.

Defective laterals may also be a significant concern
for the property owner. When water can infiltrate
into the sanitary sewer system, soil particles can
also migrate into the pipe and leave a subsurface void. These voids can cause sidewalks
and patios to collapse. These voids also create "sink holes" that are tripping hazards.
Some residents have a "perpetual sinkhole" where they continually add fill dirt, when in
fact they have a defective lateral.

Even if the defective lateral is not creating visible voids, the defects are often a way for
tree roots to enter and clog the pipe. Tree roots thrive in the nutrient rich sewage
environment and are often the cause of sewage backups into buildings.

HOW CAN THEY BE FIXED?
Typically, the only economical way to fix a defective lateral is to dig up and replace the
old lateral. The new lateral should be constructed with new PVC pipe meeting the City
of Greencastle's specifications. The pipe should have stone bedding to protect the new
pipe from surface loading.

A PVC capped cleanout should be installed within 3-feet of the building, at all sharp
bends, and again at the City ROW line. Cleanouts are helpful in I) locating the lateral
and 2) allowing access to the lateral for cleaning purposes.

The Greencastle Sewage Department inspects all lateral construction to verify proper
construction and to document the location of the laterals so that future property owners
may have a record of the lateral location. In many locations (not all), the Sewage
department has records of the existing lateral location. This information is often
helpful for property owners looking for their lateral. This information might explain why
the comer of a concrete patio has collapsed.
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CAUTIONS

Call At Least
2 Full Working
Days Before You

Dig

PLANT
PROTECTION SERVCEINSPECTIONS

The most obvious ways to identify a defective
lateral are by looking for the effects of a defective lateral. When walking the area over
the lateral, one should look for voids, sunken sidewalks, or other settlement problems.

Most of the sewer mains are located within the
public right-of-way (ROW). The City does
require a permit to dig or perform
construction within the ROW.

Before digging up the old lateral, persons are strongly encouraged to contact Indiana's
Holey Moley utility location service (telephone l-800-382-5544). If this service is not
utilized, the person digging the ditch is automatically responsible for any damages to
the gas, electric, telephone, cable, etc. utility. In addition to the Holey Moley member
utilities, there are local utilities that should be INDIANAUNDERGROUND
contacted for locations, such as the City Water
and Sewer Departments.

Sewage backups caused by roots are an indication that there are significant defects
within the sewer system. The sewage department can verify with closed circuit television
(CCTV) cameras that the sewer system is clear of roots in the public sewer main.

It is also possible to locate some lateral defects by smoke testing. This is best done
during dry ground conditions. By blowing smoke into the sewer system with high
capacity blowers, smoke can go through the cracks and up through the ground. This
procedure is not recommended for inexperienced persons and without the assistance from
the City. When smoke testing is performed, the City makes several precautions and
notifications to prevent the smoke from causing damage and unnecessary alann.

CERTIFICATIONS

SEWER LATERAL

Laterals may be certified as "Sufficient" if all apparent evidence indicates that the
lateral pipe is in good shape and not a
significant contributor of I/I.
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If there are known problems, or if
there is evidence that indicates that the
lateral is in poor shape, the lateral
should be certified as "Needs
Waiver." For a lateral that needs a
waiver, written documentation should
be provided that indicates the extent
and knowledge that the lateral is in
poor shape.
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WAIVERS
For existing buildings with no construction activity, the City will grant waivers if there
are no visible sinkholes that collect and dispose of surface water. However, if there is
any building construction involving excavation occurring on the site, the City will require
that the lateral be replaced. This waiver will also be signed by the property owner,
notarized, and recorded at the Putnam County Courthouse.

No waivers will be considered for new construction.

BOARD OF PUBLIC WORKS AND SAFETY POSITION
Property Owners who want to appeal the City's initial denial of a waiver must appear
before the Board of Public Works and Safety. The Board will consider extreme economic
hardships and other considerations that make the efforts to rehabilitate the lateral
unreasonable.

CITY ORDINANCES
The City Ordinances specify procedures for fines and penalties if a property owner does
not properly address defective laterals.
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PROGRAM PROCEDURES

The goal of this program is to ultimately reduce the amount of 1/l as much as practical.
Some Cities have been required to achieve this goal by strict regulations with defined
deadlines for compliance. Indiana Department of Environmental Management has
allowed the City of Greencastle to achieve this goal with some flexibility.

The Greencastle Board ofPublic Works and Safety has decided to implement this
program in such a way that the City will be the least intrusive to private property owners,
but will still be effective.

The City does not charge the property owner any fees for this program. The private
Certified I/I Inspectors may charge for their I/I inspection services.

lt is up to each property owner to locate a Certified I/I Inspector. The City keeps a list
of current Certified I/I Inspectors. The City will not recommend any inspector more or
less than any of the other inspectors. We do recommend that the property owner
interview inspectors and ask for references.

If there are deficiencies that need to
be fixed, then the property owner
should determine how to fix them.
For the public benefit, the City will
keep a current list of contractors
who wish to be considered for
private I/I removal projects. THERE
IS NO CERTIFICATION OR
OTHER REQUlREMENT TO BE
PLACED ON THIS LIST. ANY
contractor that asks the City to be on
this list will be added to the list. It is

the responsibility of the property owner to solicit and interview appropriate contractors.
The City recommends that the property Owner meet with and obtain at least two different
quotes from contractors.

This list will not limit the Property Owner's choices, but is intended to provide a list of
contractors who think that they can help. The list will designate which contractors are
Certified I/I inspectors and may have a better insight on the goals and policies of this
program.

For all residential properties (see definitions), the certification of
compliance shall occur before a new water account is established at the
Greencastle Water Utility Office, located at City Hall, I North Locust
Street.
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For all commercial or industrial properties (see definitions), the certification
of compliance shall occur within two (2) years, or by July 2005. The City
Ordinances specify penalties for not complying within the specified time.

9
l

For new construction, no waivers will be granted.

For any construction project requiring a building permit, the City Building
Commissioner bas the authority to act as a Certified I/I inspector and can perform this
inspection for no additional fees.

When a property is given a certification with all "N/A" or "Sufficient" designations,
and no "Needs Waiver" designations, then the certification shall be kept on file at the
Utility Office and be valid for five (5) years. If during that five year period of time, the
property is sold, rented, or leased to another person that needs to have the name on the
water account transferred, then the property does not need another certification. If such a
transaction occurs after that five year period, then a new certification is required.

On behalf of the City, the Sanitary Sewer Superintendent must approve any waivers.
If the City grants a waiver, then the property I n
owner must sign the waiver and a copy will be i I
recorded with the deed at the Putnam County , lo tad
Courthouse. If the property is sold, a title search
will indicate that the waiver was granted.

If the Sanitary Sewer Superintendent denies a
waiver; then the property owner may appeal the
decision at a regularly scheduled Board of
Public Works and Safety meeting. The property
Owner must contact the City Clerk Treasurer to
be placed on the agenda.

City of Greencastle Board of Public Works and Safety
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CERTIFIED 1/1 INSPECTOR

The purpose of this independent certification program is to facilitate the removal of I/I
from the sanitary sewer collection system. The City does not have an adequate staff to
oversee removal projects in every household and place of business. This Ce1iified I/I

[nspector Program allows experienced
plumbers and home inspectors to discuss
realistic options given the site-specific
conditions.

The net result will give the property
owners the best advice while ensuring
the City that the property is complying
with the I/I reduction program.

The City of Greencastle cannot and will
not assume liability from any private
property damage as a result of efforts to
comply with the I/I reduction program.
The City highly recommends that the
Certified I/I Inspectors have adequate
liability insurance to protect themselves
from lawsuits resulting from their advice
and recommendations.

The REQUIREMENTS to be a Greencastle Certified I/I Inspector are as follows:

• Attend annual certification/ re-certification seminars. The City will conduct
annual seminars to certify and re-certify I/I Inspectors. This gives the City the
opportunity to fully explain the program and any new changes that need to be
emphasized. If needed, the City will conduct additional seminars.

• Stay in good standing with the City. There is a level of trust between the City
and the Certified I/I Inspector. There is also an expectation level between a
property owner and the Certified I/I Inspector. To remain independent of
property, Certified I/I Inspectors shall have no direct nor indirect interest in the
property or buildings. This includes relation to, or employee of the property
owner or tenant. We need to protect the integrity of this program and prevent the
temptation to give a sufficient certification in order to avoid expense.

• Do this as part of your normal business operation The City does not require
that you be a licensed plumber, licensed home inspector, or other certified
professional.

City of Greencastle Board of Public Works and Safety
Policy Document to Reduce I/I from the Sanitary Sewer Systems
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• Pay all fees. To implement this program, each Certification or Re-certification
will cost $50 for the year 2003, and $100.00 for each year thereafter. Checks
shall be made out to the City ofGreencastle Sewage Department. This fee will
allow the city to recoup the costs of the program such as printing ofthis Policy
Document and conducting the Certification / Re-Certification seminars. There are
no fees for the property owners. All fees are to be paid by the Certified I/I
Inspector and are non-refundable.

Penalties: If the City discovers that a Certified I/I
Inspector is certifying false information, or not
implementing the program in the accordance with this
Policy and City Ordinances, the City will revoke the
Certification up to two (2) years. Depending on the
circumstances, the City also reserves the right to
reverse any and all certifications issued by that person.
The City also reserves the right to extend penalties to
other individuals within the same company, and to
pursue all legal remedies available.

Fines: In addition to the described penalties, the City Ordinance addresses fines that
may be imposed on the Certified I/I Inspector and the property owners.

City of Greencastle Board of Public Works and Safety
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• Administer the Board of Public Works and Safety 1/I Reduction Policy to
help achieve the goal of reducing Ill from private sources.

CITY SERVICES
As a service to the property owners, the City pledges to do the following:

page 20 of 28
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• Manhole Inspection. If there is a need to look in the sanitary sewer system,
please do not do so without the assistance of the Sewer Department. The sewer
system has many gasses and odors that may be deadly. Our experienced

• Keep Archives of plans and Sewer Tap Permits. Infonnation on all existing
sewer mains and laterals do not exist. However, the City is making efforts to find
all information that does exist, and keep the information in such a format that will
be available to the public, as needed.

• Building Commissioner. The City Building Commissioner will maintain status
as a Certified I/I Inspector and have the ability to fill out the necessary forms.
There is no cost to this certification if it is in conjunction with a building permit
inspection.

• Advisory Assistance. The City is available for assistance to help interpret the
Policy and discuss ifwaivers are applicable. Because of the large number of
properties that are affected, the City cannot commit a large number of hours to
advisory assistance.

• Keep a current list of contractors who
wish to be considered for private I/I removal
projects. THERE IS NO CERTIFICATION
OR OTHER REQUIREMENT TO BE
PLACED ON THIS LIST ANY contractor
that asks the City to be on this list will be
added to the list. The list will designate
which contractors have current I/I inspection
certifications. It is the responsibility of the
property owner to solicit and interview
appropriate contractors. This list will not
limit the Property Owner's choices, but is
intended to provide a list of contractors who
think that they can help.

• Keep a current list of Certified I/I Inspectors available for review by the
public. This list may be obtained at the Utility Office- City Hall One North
Locust Street, or may be viewed on the Sewage Department's website
yww._gogreencastle.com/city/sanitary.

City of Greencastle Board of Public Works and Safety
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personnel will help you remove manhole lids and look for dyed water, or anything
else as needed.

• CCTV Inspection. If there is a valid
concern about the condition of the sewer
main, the Sewer Department will use a
closed circuit television (CCTV) camera
and truck to inspect the sewer main from
the inside. If any problems such as roots
or collapsed pipes are discovered, the
City will properly address the situation.

• Maintain the Collection System The
City has programs in operation to
identify and eliminate excessive VI within the City's sanitary sewer collection
system. Just like the property owners, the City makes every effort to fix problems
when they are discovered.

• Track Waivers. The City will track waivers to help determine which sections of
the City might benefit from new storm sewers or other public works projects.

• Educate Realtors, Lenders, Plumbers, and Home Inspectors. The City will
make efforts to contact the relevant professions and infonn them of this policy. A
large part of this service is to conduct Certified I/I Inspector seminars.

City of Greencastle Board of Public Works and Safety
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ACCEPTING EXISTING SEWER SYSTEMS

Design and Construction of new sanitary sewer systems shall conform to the Greencastle
Standard Specifications and Construction Details. Those standards were established and
developed to protect the integrity of the sewer system and eliminate Ill sources.

There are private systems that contribute sewage flows to the City's public sewer system.
It has been the policy of the Board of Public Works and Safety to periodically inspect
those private systems and see if any excess I/I is present. If excessive l/I is found, the
City reserves the right to do any or all of the following:

• Require that the property owner fix the problem location(s)

• Restrict the ability of the property owners to obtain building permits.

• Fix the problem area(s) and file a lien against the property(s) to recoup the
expenses.

• Fix the problem area(s) and charge the affected property(s) a surcharge on the
sewer utility bills to recoup the expenses.

• File a lawsuit against the property owner(s) to fix the problem

• Pursue any fines and other legal remedies available due to the property owner's
noncompliance.

Sometimes, the City is requested to adopt existing sewer systems. This adoption may be
a result of annexation, or other dedications. Because the systems are in use, it is not
practical to air test, mandrel test, or vacuum test the system. The city must require that
excessive I/I sources be eliminated before all of the utility customers are requested to
adopt expensive construction projects.

The Board of Public Works and Safety decision to adopt an existing sewer system will
consider some or all of the following actions:

• CCTV inspect the entire system
and identify any visible defects.

• Performflow monitoring to
identify clear water

• Smoke testing

• Dye Testing

• Visual observation

City of Greencastle Board of Public Works and Safety
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• Lift station evaluation

• Manhole(s) inspection

• Other actions as deemed necessary by Sewer Superintendent and City Engineer.

City of Greencastle Board of Public Works and Safety
Policy Document to Reduce I/I from the Sanitary Sewer Systems

page 23 of 28
'City of Greencastle, IN -March 2003



DEFINITIONS

Cleanout and Cleanout Caps: locations that provide access to the sewer lateral. These
locations shall have water tight, manufactured cleanout caps that may be removed
for inspection and maintenance purposes, but shall normally remain closed.

Collection system: a system of sewer pipes designed to collect sewage from many
properties and transported to the WWTP. The pipes are typically larger than 8­
inch diameter and are owned and operated by the City.

Commercial: a place of business, industry or all other properties that do not conform to
the "residential" definition in this Policy.

Domestic Sewage: wastewater generated by households, businesses, or industries before
it is mixed with I/I. Also known as raw sewage.

Downspouts: a method that allows water from a building rooftop to discharge to the
ground, storm sewer, or sanitary sewer. Sanitary sewer connections shall be
eliminated. Also commonly known as roof drains, house gutters, and roof
leaders.

Dye testing: Liquid dye is added to water, flushed, drained and/or pumped to verify
where the water is normally flushed, drained and/or pumped.

Grinder Pumps: a pump within a structure intended to pump domestic sewage from a
low point to a high point. These shall be discharged to the sanitary sewer and not
to a storm sewer system.

House Gutters : see "Downspouts" definition
Industrial: a place of business, industry or all other properties that do not conform to the

"residential" definition in this Policy.
Inflow and Infiltration: see "Introduction" section of this policy.
1/1: pronounced "eye and eye," an abbreviation for Inflow and Infiltration.
Lateral: a pipe that connects a building sewer system to a sanitary sewer main. Also

known as a service line.
Lift Station: a large manhole in the sanitary sewer collection system with large pumps

installed to pump the sanitary sewer to another location closer to the WWTP
Manholes: large structures within the collection system where sewer pipes typically

change directions. Manholes have manhole castings, or "lids" that may provide
an overflow point when the sewage system surcharges.

Poly vinyl chloride (PVC): a rigid plastic-type material used to make modem plumbing
pipes and fittings. PVC is preferable over older materials because of watertight
joint connections and long- lasting dependable characteristics.

Rental: a rental property may be considered as a residential. or commercial property
depending on how/if the residential units are required to set up a water utility
account.

Residential: any property with living units where each unit is responsible for a separate
City of Greencastle water utility account.

Right-of-way (ROW): this land is typically the street, sidewalk, and other property that
the City has authority and rights for public use.

Roof Drains: see "Downspouts" definition
Roof Leaders: see "Downspouts" definition

City of Greencastle Board of Public Works and Safety
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Sanitary Sewer: a general term to refer to the sewer system intended to transport
domestic sewage from individual properties to the WWTP The sanitary sewer
may include laterals, collection system, manholes, lift stations, and the WWTP.

Service Line: see "Lateral" definition
Sewer Mains: sanitary sewer pipes that transport sewage from multiple homes to the

treatment plant.
Smoke testing: a method to test if

different locations,
structures, and/or pipes are
physically connected. See
"Smoke Testing" section of
this Policy.

Storm Sewer: a system intended
to convey clear water to a
natural drainage way.
These systems may include
street curb and gutters,
storm pipes, sump pump
discharge lines, ditches,
swales, and creeks. The
stonn sewers shall not be
connected to a sanitary sewer system.

Sump Pump: a pump within a structure intended to pump clear water from a low point
to a high point. These shall not be discharged to the sanitary sewer.

Sewage: a general term for domestic sewage, or combination of domestic sewage and I/I.
Wastewater Treatment Plant WWTP: also known as sewage plant, and wastewater

treatment facility (WWTF).
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CERTIFICATION FORM FOR 1/1 COMPLIANCE
(Thisform is to befilled out only by a Greencastle Certified II Inspector Thisform may be photocopied

as needed)
Property Address: _
Property Owner: _
• Residential. Residential Properties must be certified before a pennanent water

account is established or transferred.
• Commercial. Commercial Properties must be certified prior to July 31, 2005.

"N/ A" indicates that the property does not have any item within that category to inspect.
"Sufficient" indicates that the property does have items within that category and are found to be in

accordance with the Greencastle 1/1 Policy.
"Needs Waiver" indicates that the property does have items within that category that do not comply with

the intent to remove 1/1 from the sanitary sewer system. Supporting written documentation must
be attached to this certification to justify why the City should consider granting a waiver.

Category NIA Sufficient Needs A
ti/ ti/ Waiver

Downspouts
Cleanouts
Sump Pumps
Grinder Pumps
Laterals

1/1 Inspector Certification:
With the exception of the items indicated in need ofa waiver, I hereby certify that the referenced property
fully complies with the rules, regulations, and intent of the City of Greencastle Board of Public Works and
Safety Policy Document to Reduce Inflow and Infiltration (I/I) from the Sanitary Sewage Collection and
Treatment Systems. Any item indicated in need of a waiver has supporting written documentation attached
for City's consideration. I also certify that I am not affiliated with the owners of the said property.

Signature _
Printed Name--------------------------------
Certified [/ Inspector Number
Company _
Date of Certification-----------------------------

Concerns in the area that the City should investigate:

City of Greencastle Board of Public Works and Safety
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REQUEST FOR WAIVER
(This form is to only be filled out by a Greencastle Certified IInspector and attached to the Certification

ofII compliance. Thisform may be photocopied as needed)
Property Address: _
Hr(1)CT[y ()111e[,

This waiver is intended for the following category.
Sump Pumps
Grinder Pumps
Laterals

Reasons for waiver:

(Check one)
Waiver Approved:
Waiver Denied:

Sewer Superintendent Signature _
Date of Waiver Review----------------------------

Superintendent Comments:
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USEFUL TELEPHONE NUMBERS

If there are any questions concerning this policy, please do not hesitate to call any of the
following persons:

Sewer Superintendent, Mike Neese (765) 653-3394
Mike is responsible to oversee the program and grant waivers. He also has old
lateral records that are often useful in locating existing laterals.

Sewage Utility Office Chief Clerk, Madonna Gose (765) 653-6830
Madonna is responsible for distributing tbe I/I Reduction Policy books. She may
also be contacted for obtaining lists of current Certified I/I Inspectors and I/I
contractors.

Street Commissioner, Thomas Miles (765) 653-3391
Thomas is responsible for all construction activity within the public right-of-way.

City Engineer, Glen Morrow, PE...............................................................(765) 653-0445
Glen can help make a determination as to acceptable stonn sewer systems.

Clerk Treasurer, Pamm Jones (765) 653-9211
Pamm is responsible for placing persons or items on the Board of Public Works
and SafetyAgenda.

Mayor Nancy Michael (765) 653-3100
The Mayor is responsible for overseeing the general business of the City.
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